STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

TDD Access: Relay NH \8\'

COMMISSIONER
Jared 8. Chicoine 1-800-735-2964
Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Elims, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526
Website:
www.energy.nh.gov

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

May 15, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a RETROACTIVE
amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc, (VC #177203), Concord, NH, for the Low-Income Household Water
Assistance Program, by extending the completion date from March 31, 2024 to June 30, 2024,
changing the amount of the program from $502,297 to $346,516.04, and changing the scope to
authorize  onetime supplemental payments of $742 to eligible customers that applied for the
program by March 31, 2024 totaling $196,630 within the updated price limitation of $346,516.04,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 21, 2022, Item
#61 and amended on September 20, 2023, Item #5B. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the following accounts:

Fiscal Account/Class Class Title Current Increased Revised
Year Budget (Decreased) Budget
Amount

2023 | 02-52-52-520010- Grants for Pub

24520000-074-500587 | Assist & Relief | $221,183.00 | (8175,054.74) | $46,128.26
2023 | 02-52-52-520010- Grants for Pub

19880000-074-500587 | Assist & Relief | $281,114.00 | ($177,356.22) | $103,757.78
2024 | 02-52-52-520010- Grants for Pub

19880000-074-500587 | Assist & Relief | $0.00 $196,630.00 | $196,630.00

Total $502,297.00 | ($155,780.96) | $346,516.04
EXPEANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program



His Excellency, Goveror Christopher T. Sununu
and the IHonorable Council

May 15, 2024
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(LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low
Income Home Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAS’
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver LIHWAP services. The Department proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local
level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department’s Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

This contract is RETROACTIVE because the Department wanted to ensure the amendments
had accurate numbers to determine the amount of the onetime supplemental and the program did
not close until March 31% and the US DHHS is allowing the Department to make payments with
the remaining funds until June 30, 2024.

LIHWAP is a statewide program funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water
and sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income.
Program funds originally were provided for arrearage payoffs to low-income households.

The program ended on March 31, 2024 and the US DHHS has authorized the Department to
reallocate the remaining funds based on number of households to provide a one-time credit to all -
households that are eligible and applied for the program by March 31¥. This reallocation is
combined with a decrease in the program’s American Rescue Program Act funding by
$722,867.30 by the US DHHS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. :

Respectfully glibiitted,
.

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: LOW-INCOME HOME WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment dated April 17, 2024, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Memrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafier referred to as the “State™) and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc., PO Box 1016, 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Memimack County, NH 03302
(hereinafter the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 21, 2022, Item #6] and amended on September 20, 2023,
Item #5B, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions
specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein,

WHEREAS, pursuant to-the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:
1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of March 31, 2024 and inserting in place
thereof the date of June 30, 2024,

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current Price Limitation of $502,297 and inserting in place thereof
$346,516.04.

O) Exhibit C ~ Payment Terms:

1. Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current contract
date of “upon Governor and Council approval through March 31,
2024” and inserting in place thereof “upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30, 2024.”

CAPBM Amendment Contractor Enitials:
Grants; LIHWAP 210INHLWCS/6 Date: +182024
CFDA: 93.568 Page 1 of 3



Amend line one under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$32,989.00 and insert in place thereof $15,948.00.

Amend line two under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$188,194.00 and insert in place thereof $30,180.26.

Amend line two under Consolidated Appropriations Act by
striking $240,134.00 and insert in place thereof $259,407.78.

Add third line under Consolidated Appropriations Act to read “Of
the $259,407.78, $196,630.00 shall be used to provide a $742
supplemental payment to water/sewer vendors to be applied toward
cligible customers’ current bill, with any remaining funds to be
applied as a credit.

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to *“upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2024.” P

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to *“upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30, 2024.”

F) Exhibit B — Scope of Services: Amend Exhibit B to include paragraph 4.

Supplemental payments directly to water/sewer vendors to be applied
towards eligible customers’ current bill, with any remaining funds to'be
applied as credit to assist with rate reduction.

2, Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by

the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first

above written.

CAPBM Amendment
Grants: LIHWAP 210INHLWC5/6
CFDA: 93.568

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Energ

By:

edS Chicoine, Commissioner

Coffimunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

By X . Jeanne Agri - CEQ

ame ¢ of Person Authorized to Sign)

]

Contractor Initials: ~J
Datc: 4-1 2024
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State of

County of

On this day of , 2024, before me, , the
undersigned officer, personally appeared who acknowledged
himself/herself to be the of Community Action Program Belknap-

Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do, executed the
foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires:

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-

Assistant Attorney General
~4/18/2024

Date
[ hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

CAPBM Amendment Coniractor [nitialsy
Grants; LIHWAP 2101NHLWCS/6 © Dateis-18-202
CFDA: 93.568 Page 3of' 3



State of New Hampshire
= Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New. Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered
to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0006656579

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State




| COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
ﬂ ‘ BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Christopher J. Pyles_Chair,Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1.1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 14, 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this centificate is attached. This
authority remains valid thirty (30} days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from
the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy
the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

,-“"fd-’
Dated: 4/16/2024 Signature of Elected Officer ﬁ Z —

Nege: Christophef J. Py
Title; Chair, Board irectors

Rev, 11472024
KIh.CAPBM COA 2024

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 | 1 800 836-5525 TTY/TDD_1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898
Website: capbm.org
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

01/03/2024
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND QR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER({S}, AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder i3 an ADDITIONAL INSUR_ED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be andorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjact to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER GONEACT  Susan Sullivan
Cross Insurance-Manchester PHONE .. (603)669-3218 | A% no); (803) 6454331
1100 Elm Street A%Aa'ess: manch.cens@crossagancy.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER A : Selective Insurance Co. of SC 19259
INSURED \NSURER B : Oranite Stats Health Care and Human Services Self-
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc. wsurerc: Federal Ins Co 20281
P.O.Box 1016 ECRERIEL
INSURERE :
Concord NH 03302 SURERIER
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  23-24 Al 24-25 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
ll':‘ﬂ;i TYPE OF INSURANCE ;&Dpl: | wvp POLICY NUMBER gnﬁ%%ﬁ, &%ﬁﬁ, umTs
D<| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
[ DAMAGE TO RENTED
] camswoe [ 2] occur PREMISES (Ea ccrumencey | 8 11000.000
|| MED EXP (Any one person) 3 20.000
Al $ 2509940 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | personaL s ADv IUURY | § 1:000.000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPULIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000.000
POLIGY R Loe PRODUCTS - cOMPIOPAGG | 3 3000.000
OTHER: s 3
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea socigenty it s 1,000,000
] ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person} | §
| (o] EDULED
A [ AUTOES i iﬁ;‘og‘ﬁ- S 2509940 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| auTos ony AUTOS ONLY | (Per accigent}
s
| > umBreLLA LB | 5] occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 5:000,000
A EXCESS UAB R RS ATE $ 2509940 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | ,coReGATE. s 5.000.000
oeo | <] revenmion s © s
WORKERS COMPENSATION o] PER OTH
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ><1 Srnure | | ER 5T
B |OFHCEAMENOER EXCLUDEDD T TE NiA HCHS20240000547 (3a.) NH 01012024 | 01/01/2025 |k EACHACCIDENT o
{Mandatory In RH} ELL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE | s 1,000,000
W yas, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF CPERATIONS balow E.. DISEASE - POLICY LIMT |3 'MW
Directors & Officers Liabitity Limit $1,000,000
rectors rs Liabili
C B2471794 04/01/2023 | 04/01/2024 | Deductible $5,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS [ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additionat Remarks Scheduls. may be antachad if more space is required)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN '
State of New Hampshire; Dept of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
21 South Fruit Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Suite 10
Concord NH 03301 M
l

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMMISSIONER TOD Access: Reloy NH
. Jared S. Chicoine 1-800-735-2064

Tal. {803) 271-3870

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Elms. Jr. FAX No. 2T1-1526

Websita:

www.energy.nh.gov

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
21 S. Fnut SL, Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 20, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

RE TED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contrect with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. (VC #177203), Concord, NH, for the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program, by
extending the completion date from September 30, 2023 to March 31, 2024, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. No additional funding is involved with this contract.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 21, 2022, Item
#61. 100% Federal Funds

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low
Income Home Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAS’
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver LIHWAP services. The Department proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local
level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department’s Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

LIHWARP is a statewide program, funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water
and sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income.
Program funds will provide arrearage payoffs to low-income households.

The US DHHS recently afforded states the opportunity to extend this program for an additiona!
six months. The Department recently sought and received approval for this extension. No
additional funds were made available. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended.

Page 1 of 2 G&C 972072023



In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner

Page2of2 G&C 97202023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERCY

SUBJECT: LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM CONTRACT
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated August 21, 2023, is between the Statc of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 -
(hercinafter referred to as the “State”) and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc., P.O. Box 1016, 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302
(hereinafter the “Contractor™).

i Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by

‘Governor and Council on September 21, 2022 (ftem #61) the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects; '

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agrecment as sct forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

i Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completign Daté; Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of September 30, 2023 and inserting in place -

thereof the date of March 31, 2024. '

B) Exhibit C —Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking
the current contract date of “upon Govemor and Council approvai through
Scptember 30, 2023" and inserting in place thereof “upon Governor and

Council approval through March 31, 2024

C) Exhibit.D: Amend period covered by this certification to “upon Governor
and Council approval through March 31, 2024.”

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to “upon Governor and Council
approval through March 31, 2024 .

CAPBM Amcodment t Contractor Initfals:
Grants: LIHWAP 210INHL WCS/6 Date:
CFDA: 93.568 ' Page 1 0



CONTRACT AMENDMENT
NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

2. Continpance of Agreement. Except as specifically aménded and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment,

IN WITNESS .WHEREQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH

By:

Cogimunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

By:

Micheel Tabry, Chief Opc

State of New Hampshire
County of _Mcrrimack

On this __2]st day of August , 2023, before me, Kathy L Howard , the
undersigned officer,.personally.appeared _ Michael Tabory who ecknowledged

himself/herself to be the _Chicel Operating Officec  of Community Actign Program Befknap- .
Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do, executed the
forcgoing instrument for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ hereunto set my hand and official sca).

My Commission expires:

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Assisizant Aromey General
9/1/2023

Date:

CAPBM Amendment e Conwector [nitialy;
Granis: LIRWAP 2 I0INHLWCS/6 : Dazs:




CONTRACT AMENDMENT
NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

L hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Govemnor and Council- of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on —SEP—2—0-2023— 2023,

OFFICEQF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

SECRETARY QOF STATE

CAPBM Amendment _ . Contractor Initials:
Grents: LIHWAP 210 NHLWC3/6 Dete:

CFDA: 91.568 Page 3ol Y



~ State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scenlan, Secrelary of Siate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshirc Nonprolit Corporation registered
(0 transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965, 1 further certily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's ofMice have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofMice is concerned.

Business 1D: 63021
Centificaie Number: 0005774597

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hercla set my hand and cause 10 be altixed
the Seal ol the State of New Hampshire,
this 91h‘da,v of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State




& . COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
2“{’ BELKNAP-MERRIMAGK COUNTIES, INC. )

EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

" CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. topher les, Chairperson, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:
1.1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Proaram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Ine,

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 9, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Exocutive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chlef Fiscal Officer, Stoven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chalrperson, Board of Directors are duty
authorized on behalf of. munity Action ' lknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the Statle of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is suthorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in histher .
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify thal said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in cantracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein,

P "‘f 7(/" . &
Dated: §/168/2023 Signature of Elected Officer __/~ ,—g("

Némg_,_cbdstopher J.
Title: Chairperson, Bzr?of D:ry:)

(/,

Rev, MV201)
WeCAPGN COA 2023

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 Induswdal Park Drve, Concord, NH
Phoae: 603 225-3295 | 1 80Q 856-5525 TTY/TDD_L B0 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898
Website: capbaioeg
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

BATE (MADOYYYY)
031472023

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE-HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: 1 ths certificats holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisians or be endorsed.
H SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms end condlitions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lisu of such endorsement(s). .

PROCUCER ﬁm‘” Susan Sullvan
FIAUCro3s insurance PHORE {603) 668-3218 | [A, oy, 1603) 8454331
1100 Eim Street SooRtss; manch.cens@crossagency.com
IKSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC
Manchaster NH 03101 wsURER A ; Sclective Insurance Co. of SC : 19259
HSURED insurer @ : Grenite State Heatth Care and Human Services Seli-
Community Action Program Belknap-Merimack Countes Inc. wsurerc: Federsitna Co 20281
P. O, Box 1016 INSURER D :
; g INSURER E :
Concord NH 03302 URERTE:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  22-23 ALL 23-24 WC/DAO REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TQ CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUICY PERIOD
INDICATED., NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE S8EEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
ra TYPR OF DISURANCE 18T Jewn POLICY NUMBER RS LA P - umTs '
5] COMMERCIAL GENERAL LABIITY EACH OCCURREMCE 3 1.000.000
] cramswnoe @ occuR [ Prgvess By ovmposny |5 1-000-000
|| MED EXP [ Ay one person} 1 20,000
A 52509940 1000172022 | 100012023 | peasomas oy mopre | 3 1:000.000
GENL. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000.000
POLICY oy woc PRODUCTS . COMPIOP AGG_| & 3:000.000
OTHER: '
_w_rqnoeu UABIITY comnso,sw:u L 3 1,000,000
»¢] anrauro BOOILY (NJURY (Per parson) |
| ED SCHEDWL
Al mm‘, ity ED 52509940 10/01/2022 | 10/01/2023 | BODAY IHIUAY (Par accicend) | §
] MRED HON-OWNED . RSPERTY DAMAGE s
|__| anos oy AUTOS oY | (Per pocicent)
s
L( UMBRELLA LA > ccoum EACH OCCURRENCE 4 5.000,000
A EXCEIS LAS Sl 52509940 100112022 | 10012023 [ conecare s 5.000.000
oeo | <] revenmon 3 9 = 1
WOAKERS COMPENIATION H ™
AND EMPLOYERS' LUABILITY o XSt | (¥ s
B [ e e it nia HCHS 20230000547 (3a.) NH 010172023 | 01/01/2024 |Ek: EACHACCIDENT i
Glandoory w0 E1. OiEAss . 4 Ewprovee | 3 1:000.000
OESCRIPTION F DPERATIONS betow E.L. DISEASE - POuCY L7 _| 3 1,000.000
Limit $ 1,000,000
Directors & Officers Liability
[ 82471794 04/01/2023 | 0420172024 | Deduciibie $ 5.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 189, Addttons? Remarks Schedule, may be riiached i mors space is required)
Retar to policy lor exclusionary endorsemenis and special provisions.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Stats of New Hampshire: Depl of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,
21 South Frult Sveet
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Sulte 10
Concord NH 03301 M
1
© 1888-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved,
ACORD 25 (2014/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstared marks of ACORD




. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ¢ 007199 an §:42 RCUD .,S\W '
. oNER | i ‘ TOD Access: Retay RH

Jored S. Chicolne 1-800-T35-2004
. Tel. (603) 271-3870
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Elims, Jr. FAX No, 271-1526
’ ' . Websits:
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY wwwienaoyailpey
21 S. Fdt SL., Suits 10 - ) (0
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 6, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Siate House A

Concord, New Hampshirc 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1} Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Encrgy (NH DOE) 10 cnter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countics, Inc. (VC#177203), Concord, NH, in the amount of
$502,297.00 for the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP), effeclive upan Governor and
‘Executive Council approval through September 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds. :

Funds to support this request arc anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2023 upon
the availability and continued appropriation of {unds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Encrgy Water Assistance Program FY 2023
2-52-52-520010-24520000 ;
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief © $221,183.00

2-52-52-520010-19880000
074-500587 Graunts for Pub Assist & Relief $281,114.00

Total: $502,297.00

2) Funher request authorization to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countics, Inc.
$200,919.00 from the above-refercnced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client
service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the LIHWAP as a result of the five statewide CAAS'
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to
deliver LIHWAP services. NH DOE proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have
successfulty provided similar services at the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely
with the NH DOE Fuel Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income
programs.



iHis Execliency, Governor Chiristopher It Suninu
and the Honorbk Cruneil
Pagc 2 of 2

LIHWAP is a statewide program, funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water and sewer
arfearage payment. services for NH Fuel Assistence Program enrolled families, including those who are elderly or
disabled. Program funds will provide drrearage payofFs to tow-income households.

This LIHWAP progfam will be operating on a September-21, 2022 to"September 30, 2023 program year. No
funds will be obligated under this contract unless federal monies are available to be expended. The proposcd
advanicé of funds will enable the CAAs 16 operate the program betweeri monthly reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to suppont
this program.

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner

G&C 032172022
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2015)

Notice: This agmem-ent tnd afl of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Govemeor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is privaic, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed 10 in writing prior to signing the contract.

* AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutuzily agree as {ollows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
‘1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

New Hampshire Department of Energy 21 South Fruit St., Ste. 10

; Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name l.4 Conlrector Address

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. | P.O. Box 1816, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

Number "02-52.52-520040-19380000- | Scptember 30, 2023 $502.297
(603) 225-3295 074-500587 & 02-52-52-
: $2010-24520000-074-300537

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Adsistance Progrem Adnumsmtor (603)271-83¢7 :

1.11 Contmctor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

. Jeanne Agri, Executive Director
Date: 8.30-2022
113 Stalx 1.14 Name and Title of Stste Agency Signatory
; Christopher Elims. Deputy Commissioner

" Date: 8/3'/::

118 Appronl by the N. H Depament of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:

1.16 Appioval by th ey Genera) (Form, Substance and Exccution) tif applicable)

= BY// /’/ :(/,/ D, On:  September 2, 2022

1.17

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C ltem number: - " G&C Mecting Date: StP 21 o2

(M
Scrt\ﬁl\.\' 6'? %t Page 1 of §

Contractor Initials
Date
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1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED The State of New
‘Hempshire, acting through the agency ldcnuf' ed in block k1
("State™), engages contractor identificd in block 1.3
{(""Contractor) to perform, and the Contracior shall perform, the
wark or stle of goods, or both, identified end more particularly
described in the: anached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein By reference (" Services™).

3 EFFECTIVE DATUCOMPLET!ON OF SERVICES.
3.0 Nommumndmg any provuuon of this Agreement (o the
contrary, and subject 1o the approval -of the Govemor and
Executive Council of-the Stateof New Hampshire, if applicable,
ihis Agreement, and'all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shal!
become cffective of the date. the Govermnor and Executive
Council spprove this Agreement a5 indicated in block .17,
unless no tuch spproval is-required, in which case:the Agreemient
shalt become efféctive on the-date the Agreement is signed by
the Suite Agency a3 shown'in block.1.13 (“Effective Da:c“)
3.2 I the Conmactor commences the Scrvices prior to the
Eﬁ'ealve Date, all Services perfonmed by the Contmactor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed .pt the sole risk of the
_ Contractor, and in the evént thal chis Agreeinént does not become
cflective, the: State shall have no 'linbiliry to the Cdntractor,
including -without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contraétor “ for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.-

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding sny provision of this Agreement io. the -

conwary, all obligations, of the ‘State hercunder, including.
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availubility ard continued appropriation of
funds affected by any stite or federol legislative or executive
uction that reduces, climinates or otherwise modifies the
‘appropristion or avznlabtlxly of f'undmg for this Agn::menl and
.thé Scope for Services provided in EXH[BIT B, in wholc or in
pant. In.no-event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such avaitable sppropristed funds. In the
event of b reduction or términstion of appropristed funds, the
Suaté shail have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if evér, and shall hove the right 1o reduce or
terminste the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
‘giving the Contractor natice of .such reduction or fermination.
The State-shall not be required ro transfer funds from eny other
.account or source;lo the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailabte.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. ‘

3.1 The conbract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified .and more panticularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorportied herein by reference.

Page2 of §

5.2 The payment by the State of the contrect price shail be the
only arid the compléte reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatéver nanure incurred by the Contractor in the

. performance hefeof, dnd shall be the only and the compleie

compensation to the Contractor for the’ ‘Services. The State ghall
have no liability to the'Contractor other thinn tié cotraci price.
3.3 The Srate reserves the right 10 offset from .any- amounts
athenwise payable to the Contractar under this Apreement those
liquidated amiounts required or permirted by N.H. RSA 30:7
thiough RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithitanding any provision in, this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpeéted éircumstances, inno
event shall the totel of all paymenis'authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation st forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conncction with thé performance of the Services, the.

Contractor shall comply with sll epplicable statités, laws,
regularions, and orders of federnl, state, county or muriicipal
suthorities which impose eny obligation or duty upon the
Conrractor, intluding, but not limited 1o, civil nghrs znd equal
employment opportunity-laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in ony part by mionies of the United State§,-the Contractor
shall comply with all fcd_ernl executive ofders, nile, reguletions
and statutes, and with eny rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Siates issue to-implement thesé regulations.
The Contracior shall slso comply with sll npphuble intellecnsal
property laws,

6.2 Daring the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against émployces or applncams ‘for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, ag€, stx, handickp, sexual
oricntation, or national origin and will (ake affirmative action to

" prevent such discrimination,

6.3. The. Contracior agrees to permil the State or Umted Sates
access 10 any of the Contractar's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regul'aieons
and orders, end the covenants, terms md conditiony of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall ai its own expense provide ail personne)
necessary (o perform the Services. The Conirzctor warrants thar
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualificd to
perfonn the Services, 'ond shall be properly licensed and

‘othérwise authorized to do 30 unider all- a;ipllcab'l: laws,
. 1.2 Unless otherwise suthorized in wnung. during the term of

this Agreement, and Tor a period of six (6) manths after the
Compietion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall aqt h:re nnd

shall ‘not permit any subconiractor or other person,. fi om ar -

corporation with ivhom it is engagéd in a.combined ¢flont to
perform the Services (o hire, tny person who is a State employce
or official, who is materisily invoived in thé pror.uremem

CAPBM 210INHLWCS/6
CFDA#93.568
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edministration or. pcrformance of this Ag:ccmenl This
provision shill survive termination of this Agreemen.

1.3 The Coiitracting, OIT:cc: specified in block 1.9, or liis or her
SUCCESSOT,, shall be the State's: represenmwe In the event of any
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
‘Contrecting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any onc or more of the follgwing acts ar omissions of the

Contreelor shall constitute an even: of defaitlt hereunder (“Event

of Default™:

8.0.1 faifure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on

schedule;

8.1.2 filure to submit'any reportrequiréd hereunder; and/oc

8.1. failure to pcrform any other'covenant, teim or condmon of

this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defaull, the State may

take my one, or more, or &ll, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Conrractor a-wrinen notice spcclfymg the Event of

Default and reguiring it 1o be femedied within, in the absence of

2 greater or besser specification of lime, thirty (30) day: from the

datc of thenotiee; and if the Ev_n::_\(_gf Defauft is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, efTective twa (2) days sfter giving the

Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2-give the Contractor a writen notice specifying the Event of

Defeult and suspending ol) -payments to be mede under this

Agreement end crdéring that the, poriion of the contract price
. which would atherwise accrue to the Contractor during the

penod frorn thc dale of such ‘notice until such time a5 the State

determines that the ‘Contractor has cured the Event of Delouk
" shall never be paid to the Comractor
8.2.3 give the Cantractor 8 writien notice specifying the Event of
Default end set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to:the Coniractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
‘any Evienit 6f Defeult; andfor

8.2.4 give the'Contrdcior a written nouce specifying the Eventof '

Dcl'uull treat the Agreement gs bresched, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedics at {aw o7 in eqility, or
both.

8.3..No feilure.by the State to enforce-any pmvusmns hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 10 thit Evert of Defeult, or any subscquent Event of
Default. Mo express faildre to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed. » waiver of'the right of the State to enforce each and
sll of the provisions hereof upon eny further or other Event of
Defauli.on the partof the Conactor.

9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Noiwithstanding paregraph B, the State may, at its sole
discretion, términate the -Agreément for any reasan, in whale or
in pan, by thirty. (30] days written notice to the Contractor that
the Siate is excrcising'its option'to tenninate the Agreement,

Paée3of5

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason oOther than the compleiion of the ‘Services, the
Confractor shall, &t the Statc’s .discretion, deliver ‘to the
anmcting Officer, not later than fifteen (| 5) days aftér the dace
of termination, 8 repon- (“Termination Repont™) descnbmg in
detail all Services performed; and the contract price camed, (0
end including the date of termination. The form, SUbjCCI mager,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Repaort shall.
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the aftached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, 2t the State’s discretion, the Contrecior
shall, within {5 day3 of notice of edrly términdtion, deyelop and
submit to the Swie g Transilion Plasy for services under the
Agreement,

10 DATAMCCESSICONFIDENTIALITYI
PRESERVATION.

10:1 As used in this Agrecmeny, the wiird “daia” shall mein al}
information and things developed or ‘obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
fikes, formulae, surveys, maps, charis, sound recordings, video
recordings, piciorial reproductions, drawings, |nalyscs graphic
representations, compuier programs, computer printouls, aotes,
letters, memorande, papers, and documents, all whethér
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been ra:_c:_vcd from
the State of purchased with funds provided for thet purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property.of the State, and
shall be rerumned o the State upon demeand or'upon lerminaiion
of this Agreement for any reasoh.

10.3 Confidentigliry of dato shall be govémed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9t-A or gther existing law. Disclosure of dala requirés
prior wrinten approval of the Spate.-

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
pcrforma.ncc of this Agreement the Cantrector is in oll rupccu
2n independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor -an .
employee of the State. Neither the Contracior nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members. shall have authonry to
bind the State or receive any benefus, workers' compensaiion or
ather emoluments provided by the State 1o ity employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.8 Thé Contractor shall not essign, or othcrwise transfer any
intérestin this Agreement without the prier written notice, which
shall be provided o the State a1 leasi fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and & written consent o[ the'State. For purposes.
of this paragraph, a Change of Conirol shall constitute
sssignmeni, “Change of Conmol® means {a) merger,
consolidation, or & transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with ‘its afTilistes, becomes the
direct or indircet owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voling shares or similar equity interests, or combinéd voling

Contractor Initials )3
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power of the Contractor or (b) the salc of all oF subsiantially all
of the-assets. of Lhe Contrector.

122 None ‘of iihe Services shall be subcontracied by the
Contractor. without'prior written:notice and consent.of the Siate.
The State is eniitled to copies of sll subcontracts and-assignment
agreements and shall ndt bé bound by any provisions contained
in 8 subcontract or an assignmient agreemeat to which il is not o
paity.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indeminily and hold harmless the State, ity
officers and employees, :from -and aaamsl eny and 2l clzims,
lisbilities and costs for eny personsl injury or property dnmngc:
patent or copyright.infringerent, 'or other ¢laims asserted sgainst
the State, it officers of aployees; which srise.out of (or which
may be claimed to erise out of) the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractars, including but not limited to the

negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not.

be liable for any costs incurtéd by the Contractor orising under

this paragriph (], Nomithstindihg the' l‘oreg'oing, nothing herein -

conmined shall be'deemed to'constitute 8 waiver of the sovereign

immunity of the.State, wh1ch immunity is hereby reserved to the .

Stste. This covenant ‘in parmgraph 13 shall survive the
termination of thi Agrccmenl

14. INSURANCE.

14.) "The -Contractor shzll, 4t i solc expense, obtain end
continuously maintain in" force, End shall require any
subcontractor or assignee (o obisin end maintain in force, the
following insurence:

i4.1.1 commerclnl general llabillry insurance against afl claims
-of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate -

or'excess; and

14.1.2 specnal csuse of loss coverage form covering all property
subjccl 1o subplragrsph 10.2 heréin, in &n smount not less than
80% of the whole replacement velue of the property,

14,2 The policies described in subpsragruph 14.) herein shail be
on palicy forms and endorsements epproved for usc in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H, Depaniment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 Thé Contrictor shall fumish to the Contragling Officer
identified in block 1.9, of his or heér successor, 2 centificate(s) of
insurence for all insurance- required ‘undeér this Agreement.
Controctor shall also fumish to the Contracting OfTicer identified
in block- 1.9, or his or her successor; certificare(s) of i insursnce
for alt renewel(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
tater than ten (10) days prior to the expirstion datc of each
insurpnce pohcy The certificate(s) of insurgncc end any
rencwals thereof shall be attached and ere incorporated herein by
reference;

1S. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this sgreement; the'Contracior agrecs, certifies
and warrants that the Contractar is in complissice with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter ZJI-A (" Workeis”
Compensation").

152 To the extent the Contractor is subject 1o the’ requirements’

of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintsin, and

require any subcontractor ¢r nssignee o secure -and mainiain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person pfoposes ta undértike pursusntio this
Agreement.. The Contractor shall Rimish the Coritracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her sgiccessnr.‘broofdeortch' :

‘Compensation in the manner described in N.H, RSA chapter

231-A and eny epplicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
anached and aré incorporaied hércin, by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for' payment of any Workers'
Compcnmton premiums or for gny ‘ather ¢laim of bencﬁl for
Conuracior, or any subconmactor or cmp!oyce of Connclor
which mighi arise under applicable Stase of. New Hampshire
Workers’ COmpensatton laws in connection with the
peeformance of the Services under.this Agreement

16. NOTICE. Ady notice by a party heretd t6 the other party
shall be deemed te have béeri duly. delivered or given'st ‘the time
of mailing by certified mail,’ postage prepaid; in & United States
Post Office addressed to the parties 81 the sddresses given in
blo-cks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreemcm may be emended, weived
or discharged. ofily by an instrument in wnlmg sighed by the
parties hereto and only after -gpproval of such amendment,

waiver or duchnrge by the Governor and' Exccutive Council of
the Scate of New-Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursupni to Sute law rule.or pohcy

18. CHOICE OF ILAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed m uccordn.nce with the
inures to the benefi of Lhe pamu ond’ thcu rr.spcawe succelsors
and assigns. The wordmg used in this Agreemcnl is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, sad no rute
of construction shall be applicd against or in favor of any pany.
Any actions erising out.of this Agreement shall be brought and
mainwined in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS in the event of n conflict
between the terms of. this P-37 form (ay. modified in EXHIBIT
A) end/or anachments end emendment thereof; th; terins of the
P-17 (as madified in EXHIBIT A) shatl control,
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20, THIRD PARTIE.S The panies hereto do not intend to
benefit any lhu'd partics: nnd this Agreement. shali not be
constryed to confg:_r any such benefit,

21. HEADINGS.. The.-headings.throughout the Agreement are
for reference. purposes -only; and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held o explain, modufy amplify or eid in the
interpretatioh, construction or'meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement,.

72. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions:set fort in the atiached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
‘heréin by feferente.

Page 5 of §

23, SEVERABILITY. la the event any of the provisions of this

Agrr.crncm are held by a count of competent jurudlr.uon to be

contrary (o any stute or federal law,.the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain-in full force and efTest.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Apreement, which may be
cxecuted in o number of counteérjats, cech of which shall be
deerned en originial; constitutes the cntirg agreement and
understanding berween the parties, -and lupenedc.s all ;prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the sub,ecl matter
hereof.

Contractor Imuals W
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EXHIBIT A
. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Op or'before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Prov:s-ons the Contractor shall
deliver to the. Staté an mdepcndcnl audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal govemnment.

2. This auditshall.be coriducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of
‘Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.

3. This audit:repoft shall inctude s schedule 6f reveniies and expenditures by contract or-grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a.
competitive bidding process to choose a qualiﬁcd financial auditor.

"4 Thc audit shall be forwardcd to NH DOE within one month of the time of.receipt by the
Agency, accompanied by an action plan for éach f inding or questioned cost.

5. Delete tiic following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: *'The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit A"

6. ‘The costs charged under this contract shall be determined s allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E.— Cost Principles.

7. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(thrcc) yeers from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2.CFR 200.333 -
Retention Reguirements for Records nnd unul all audit findings have been resolved.

8. In nccordancc with Publi¢ Law 103-333, the “Departments of Labor, Health and Human
- Services, and Education, and Related Agencms Appropriations Act of 1995", the following
provisions arc applicable to this grant award:

a) Section 507: “Purchase of American-Made qu.upmcnt and Products” Itis the sense
of the Congress thal, {o the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and producl.s
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American- made.”

b) Section 508: “ When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposa]s bid
solicitations and other documents descnbmg projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
stite and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs-of the program or project which will be financed
with federal money, (2) the dollar amouat of federal funds for the project or program,
‘and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the pro;cct or program
that will be ﬁnanced by non-governmental sources.”

CAPBM 2101 NHLWCS/6 ExBIA, 05
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9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. .Ali final rcqunred reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within® dnrty (30)-days of the completion date (Agéeemeént Block 1.7).

10. A.DVANCES Advance funds must be used solely.for appropriate LIKHWAP expenditures.

Advance program funds are to be used'only for Water Assistance Program vendor:payments.
All Water Assistance Program payments, including Advance program payirents, riiast be
transferred from the Community Action Agency's genera) operating account into the. CAA’s
LIHEAP account and assigned with a specific account # to differentiate those, funds-from
LIHEAP program funds within 48 hours afier being recéived électronically from the Staté.
CAAs must'submit the bank account number of the designaied bank account for the- advance
funds to NH DOE pridr to the clectronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent

Advance program Ainds must remain in the FAP dedicated account st all times and cannot be
comingled with any other CAA funds. CAASs are required to submit a complete electronic copy
of the FAP-dedicated bank account staterient to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

CAPBM 210INHLWCS/A
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EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Low- Income Houschold Water Assistance Program services-to:
qualified low income individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to
operate the Program in accardance with the requirements of this contracy, the prmcnples and objectives
set forth in the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program Procedures: Manual, Informaiion
Memoranda, and other guidance as determined by NH DOE.

Water Assisiance Program (LIHWAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:
1.. Outreach, eligibil_ity, determination and centificdtion of LIHWAP applicants..

2. Payments dlrcctly to waler/sewer vendors to remove water/sewer arrearages for currcnlly
" quatified chents ‘

3. :Paymcnts directly to current tandlords for proven water/sewer arrearage amounts for their
Tenters: ‘who pay their water/sewer costs as undefined portions of, lhelr rent.

‘CAPBM 210LNHLWCS/S . Extibiv A, B&C
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; - EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS ' *-

In consideration-of 'ihc_sali;FaCloW performance of the services as determined by the State, the State
agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $502,297.00 (which hereinafter is referred to-as the
“Gi.ant")‘. !

Upon the State’s receipt of the 2022 LIHWAP American Rescue Plan Act and Consolidated
Appropriation Act grants from the US Department of Health and Human Services,:and Governor-and

Exccutive Council approval, the following funds will be authorized:

American Rescue Plan Act: : |
$32,989.00 for administration costs, of which $13,196.00 will be issued as-a cash advance;
'$188,194.00 for program costs, of which §75,277.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

_ Consolidated. Appropriations Act:

.$40,980.00. for administration cos-ls, of which $16,392.00 will be issued as a cash advance;
$240,134.00 for program costs, of which $96,054.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30; 2023.

! Ap'prqval.lo qblig‘ai'c (Exhibit 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in wrili'ng_byllhé_ New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds becom‘e.a_\}ailablc.,
Drawdowns from the balance-of funds will be made to the Contracior only afierwritten documentation
of cash need is submitted 10 the State. Disbursémcnt of the Grant shall be in accordance with
procédures established by the State s detailed in the Low-Income Household Witer Assistance

Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title: " Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
CEDA No: 93.568
Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Federal ﬂ_(gcncy: Dept, of Health & Human Services
¥ & Administration for Children and Families
-Office of Community Services

CAPBM 210INHLWC 6 ' ' Exhibiu A, B & C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:
STANDARD Exmat‘r D

The Contraotor identificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions sgrees to cornp}y with the provisions of
Sccuorls 5151- 5[60 of the Drug- -Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41 U.S:C.
701 et séq. ), end furthér agrees'to:have the Contractor's represeatative, as idéntified in Secuous 11 and 1.120f
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

" CERTIFICAT[ON REGARDING DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUI'REMENTS
ALTER.NATIVE 1- FOR GRANTEES OTHER T'HAN INDIVIDUALS
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
"US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACI‘ORS ’
US-DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This cemf cation is required by the regulations implementing Sections 51 51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70! et seq.). The January 31, 1989. regulat:ons were,
.améndéd and publistied as Part'Il'of the May 25, 1990 Fedéral Register (pages 21681- -21691), and require.
centificiition by geantees (and by inference sub-grantecs and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will.
maintain e drug-free workptace. Section-3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantce (and by inference
sub-graniees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Degartment in each
federalfiscal yéar in lieu of certificates for each grarit during the federal fiscal year cavered by thie cetifi cation.
The certificate set out below is & materia! representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or viclation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension. of payments,
suspens:on or termjnation of grants, or govemment-wide suspension or debarment, Contractors using this form

should send it to

LIHWAP Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St,, Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(Al .The grintee certifies that it will or will continug to provide a drug: free workplace by:

(2) Publishing & statement.notifying employees rhal the unlawful manufacture distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a contiolled substance is prohibited in.the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

) Establishing en ongoing: drug-free awareness program to mfonn_crnployce_s ‘about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) the grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workpluce,

) any available drug counscling, rehabilitation, and employee assustnnce progrems; snd

(%) the penaities that may be imposed upon employees for drug sbuse violations oéturring in
the workplace.

(c) Makmg it 8 requirement that each elnployee 10 be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the.statement required by paragraph (a);

(d)- Notifying the-employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) lhnt as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

o abide by the terms of the statement; and

P37 Exhibils Dthru B
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CERTIF!CATION REGARDIN G DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNAT[VE {- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont’'d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS )
us DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS -
us DEPARIM ENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US'DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2).  nolify the-employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation 6f a criminal drug
statute ocglifring in the workplace no leter than five calendar days after such conviction.

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after. rcccwmg notice Under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or.otherwise receiving actual notice af such:conviction.
Employers of conviciéd employecs must provide:notice,-including position litle, 1o every grant:

' officer on whose grant sctivity the convicted employee was working, unless, thg.,fede,ral agency
has designated a centrel point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s} of each affected grant;

{f) Takmg one of the following actions, within 30 caléndar days of rcce:vmg notice undcr
subparagruph (d)(2), with respect o any employee who is so convu:ted

(N Teking appropriate personnel action against such an employee. up to and including
termination, consistent with the rcquuremcms of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as.
amended; or

2) Requiring such employee to participate sansfacmruly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local healh, law
cnforccrncnl, or other appropriate agency.

. (g) Making & good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-lree workplace through umplcmcnmlon
of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), (¢). and (f).

(B) . The ‘grantee fay insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performancc of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (listeach location)

Check . [J if therc are workplaces an file that are not identified here..

Commynity Action Program Belknap-Merimack Counties, Inc. September 21, 2022 to September 30,2023
Contractor Nime Period covered by this Certification

Jeanne Agrl, Chief Executive Oficer
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

8730720272
Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXH[BIT E

The.Contractor idetified in Sect:on 1.3, of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 6f Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Gyidance {or New Restrictions on Lobbying, énd 31.U.8.C. 1352,
and further agrées 10.have the Contractor’s represenlative, as identified in Sectnons 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genern}
Provus;ons execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYII\G

USDEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
- US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

. "'US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
'Progr"_gms (indicaté applicable progiam covered):
- LIHWAP -
Contreét Period: September 31, 2022 to Septembér 30, 2023

The unzlersigncd cerlifies to the best pf his or her knowledge and belief that:

. (1)~ No federel appropriated funds have been’ paid or will be paid by or on behalf of thé undersignéd,to any
' person for influencing or sitempting to influence dn officer or employee of any agency, 8 member of -
Congress, an officer of employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress, in connection
. with the awirding of any federat contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant,.loan, or cooperative.agreement (and by specific mention sub-graniee or sub:

" contractor).

(2)  Ifany funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to eny pefson for
influencing or attempting to influgnce an officer or employee of any agency, 8 member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 member of Congn:ss in connection with this fedéral

* .contrect, grant, loan, or codperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Répért Lobbying”,
in accordance with: lts msu'uctlons attached and identified 8s Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shell require that the language of this centification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and coiitracts undér granis, loans, and
cooperstive agreements) and that all sub-recipients’ sha]l certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is 5 material representation of fact upon which reliance was pleced when this transnctib_n was,
made or catered into. Submiission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
mposod by Section 1352, Tide 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails 10 file the required centification shall be

" subjpe 20 & civil penalty of ngtless-than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

(m ) ' Chief Executive Officer

rirmctbr Represcnmuve S—B;alure * Contractor's Representative Title
Commumty Action Propram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. 873072022

Contractor Neme Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT F C

The Contractor idéntified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Exccutive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debaivhent, Suspension,
.and QOther’ Responsibility Matiers, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified id
Sections. 1,1,1-and V.12 'of the General Provisions, execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
'‘RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

) {t) By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

cenification set out-below.
(2) The mabnlnty of 2 person to provide the centification required below witl not ncccssanly fesult in denial of

participation’in this-covered transection. If necessary, the prospective-participant shall submit an explanation
-of why it caninot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection

with the'NR DOE's determinetion whether.io enter into this transaction. ‘However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to fumish a certification or an cxplunauon shall disqualify. siich person from participation
in this transaction. ' _

(3). The céstification in this clause i is & materisl rcprcscntnuon of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined fo:enter into this transaction. Ifit is later dctemjmcd that the prospective primary
panicipant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition 10 othér remedies available 1o the
federal .government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction {or cause or default.

(8) The prospective primiary participant shall provrdc immediate written notice (o the NH DOE agency to'whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was crroncous when submitied or hu become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(S) The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspendcd " “ineligible,” "lower tier covered transaction,”

“participent,” “pcrson " “primary covered ransaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
23 Used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executwc Order 12549: 45 CFR Pert 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary.participant agrees by subminting this proposal {contract) that should the proposed
¢overed transaction bé entered into, it shall not knowmglv enter into any lower tier covered transaction'with
2 person who is debarred, suspended, dectared mcllgnblc or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
tovered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension;, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NHDOE, without modification, in al} lower tier covered transactions -
and in al) solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A.participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participantiin a: Iowcr tier
-covered Lransaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or mvoluntarcly excluded fram the covered
transeciion, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the miethod and
frequency by which il determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required io,
check the’ Non-procuremenl List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing éontained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment.of 2 systcm of records in arder
to render in good fajth-ihe centification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
Jparticipant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent pcrson ‘in the ordinary

. course of business dcalmgs -

(10) Except for transactions suthorized under parugraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in & covered
‘transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a pcrson who is suspended, debarred,
‘incligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this trensaction,.in, addition'to other remcdiés
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARD[NG DEBARJ\PI.ENT ‘SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONS[BILITY MATIERS - FRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensiagn,.and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1)  Theprospective’ pnma.ry pamclpam certifies to the best of its knnwlcdge and belief, that it.and its
pnm:lpals

(2) are not prcs_cqlly debaried, suspended, proposed for' debarment, declared ineligible, or-voluntarily - -
excluded from.covered transaclions,by eny federal dcpamncr]i or agency;

(b) have, not within 8 three-y€ar period preceding this proposal (¢ontiact) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in,

. connection with obteining, attempting to obtain, or performing 2 public (fedcral, state or local)
transaction or a’contrect under & public transaction; 'violation of Federal or State antitrust staiutes
or commission of embe2zlement, theft, fargery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, ‘or receiving stolen property;

(<) zre not presently indicted for.otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 'govemfncnml entity
({ederal, state or, lacal) with’ commlssmn of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within.a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
‘(federel, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

{2) Where the prosplu:'tivc primary participant is unable to centify to any of the statements in this cértification,
such prospective participant shall srtach an explanation to this proposal (contract),

* Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility and
Voluntary Exclusidn - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing end submitting this lower tier prOposaI (contract), the proSpecuve lower tier participant, as dcf ned.in
45 CFR Psrt 76, centifies to the bcsi of its knowledge and belief thar it and its principals:

(aj are’not presently dcbam:d suspcnded praposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
cxcluded from participation in this transaction by any federsl department or agency.

{b)  ‘where the prospective [ower lier participant is unable to c'ertify to any of the-above; such
" prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective-lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will inclide this

clause entided *‘Certificstion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower

Tier Covered Transections,” wittiout modification in all lower per-covcrcd transactions and in all solicitations for
wer tier-covered transacly :

Y :
(YA d 4 el Chief Executive Officer
‘ Contractor Reprcscnunvcvijnaturc Contractor's Representative Title
Community Acuon Program Belknap-Merrimack Counncs Inc. 8/30/2022
Contrector Name Daté
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NEW.HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENTOF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBITG

. CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE _
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT.COMPLIANCE:

The Contracto: identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees by signeture of the Cantractor’s
represeniative gs identified in Sections'1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 10 execute the following
certification: . '

By-signing-and submitiing this'p}opossil (contract), the Contractor sgrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with.all applicable provisions of the Americans with Dissbilities Act of 1990:

Chief Execuitive Qfficer
Contractor's Representative Title

: i errimac unties. {nc. 873072022
Contractor Name Z Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public. Law 103-227, Part C )
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with. Part C-of Public Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be.permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or fegularly used for the provision of health, day care, educstion, or
library seivices to childrén undér the age of 18, if the services are funded.by federal programs.either directlyor
throuigh state or local govemments. Federal programs include grants, cooperstive sgreements, loans and loan
guarentees,-and contracts. The Iaw does not apply tochildren’s services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or (scilities used for inpatierit drug or slcohol
treatment. -

The above language miust be included iA any sub-swards that contain provisions for chitdren’s services and that
all sub—gramecs shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the prowslons of this law may result,
in the imposition of a.civil monetary penalty of up to §1,000 per day. .

CU(Uﬂ Q OO(I y Chief Executive Officer

‘Contractor Représentative §inature Contractor’s Representative Title
m - imag ntics, log, 843072022
Contractor Neme¢ Dare
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LIHWAP Approval to Obligate ~ EXAMPLE ONLY Exbiblz ]
. APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

. FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM .

STATE : L

First 77173019 Wood and SEAS Only. ADMIN, FA PROGRAM. SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 . TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET  -638,220.00 5,645,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 - :6,546,372.60 -
EXPECTED'BUDGET  * 0.00 ' 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 . 0.00 , 0.00 0.00 '0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.0 0.00 : 0.00 0.00. 1,166,661.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE T 000 . 1,165.551.00 0.00 © 0,00 ©1,165.551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED T0.0BUGATE £18,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 '5,380,821.60
BMCA :

Firet 7/1/2019 : ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
{CONTRACTED BUDGET i 8566300 . 1,003,588.00 1,000.00 69,060.00 1,170,209:00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET ' . 0.
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED - 0,00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0.00 F
| THIS APPROVAL TO.OBLIGATE "0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207;112.00 |
"TQTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207.112.00 0.00 - 0.00 207.112.00
NOT AUTHGRIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,683.00 ' 796,474.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 963.057.00
SNHS$

First 71172019 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,067,149.00

EXPECTED BUDGET - : . 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00° - .0.00 0.00 )
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00° 354,576.00 0.00 0.00 354,576.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 "0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163.777.00 1,363,674.00 1,000.00 - 84,22000 - 1,612,571.00
sCs ;
Firsl 7/1/2019 . ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS _ ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
CONTRACTED BUDGET 83,815.00 076,501.00 826.00 64,660.00 X

EXPECTED BUDGET : . 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0:00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVALTO OBLIGATE 0.00 104,504.00 | 0.00 0.00 181;504.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO.QBLIGATE .0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181;504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,535.00 €97,997.00 82800  64.§60.00 647,617.00
CAPSC )
First 77112019 " ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
. |CONTRACTED BUDGET: _ 54,676.00 $73,693.00 75760 5§5,110.00 684;135.60 |
EXPECTED BUDGET : 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0,00 0.00 118,373.00 |}
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373,00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
‘NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE S4676.00 . 455220.00 757.60 65,110.00. 565,782.60° 2
‘TCCA .
First 7/4/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
|CONTRACTED BUDGEY 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,698,757.00
EXPECTED BUDGET .0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 '303,984.00 0.00 0.00 203,084.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE - 0.00 302.984.00 0.00 0.00° 303.684.00

NOT AUTHORIZED YO OBLIGATE = 140.269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00

’ ' ' PITERDEL .
LHWAP 210 INHLWCS5 Contacir i i}
CFDAN9).568 _ , ' -.'.Be 22



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT)

CERT!F]CATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FU'ND[NG ACCOUNTABILITY.
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE' :

The Federal Funding Accounubility and Tronsparenty Act (FEATA) requiires prime ewardees of
individual -federal gru"lu equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or sfier October 1, 2010, to
report on data rclated to executive _compensation and associated first-tier sub—gmms of $25, 000 or more

[f the initial award is, below S2S 000 but subscquent grant modifications résult in o total award equel o, or
over $25,000, the award is. sub;ect to'the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

in accordance’ with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-oward and Esécutive C ompcruaﬂ'an Information),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following infanmation for any sub-award or

coniract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of edtity
2) Amount of award
3) Furiding agency ]
4) NAICS code-for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) ‘Location of the entity
8) Principal platé of performarce
9) Unigque identifier of the entity (UE] #)
10) Total compensahon and-names of the top five executives if:
' 2. More'than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemnmeni and those
: revenues aré greater than $25M annually, end
b. Compensition information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Primé gra.nt recipients must subrmiit FFATA-fequired data by the end of the month plus 30 days i ‘which
the award-or award. amcndmem is made. .

The Contractor idcmiﬁed in_Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees 1o comply ‘With the prévi'sions"ol",.
The-Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR ‘Part 170 (Rep'oﬂr’ng Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and .
further agrees to have the Contractor’s represenative, as identified in Secrions 1.1) and 1.12 of the
General ﬁro_vi;i,ons, execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information '3:5 outlined above to the New
Hampshire Dcpnﬂ.mcnl of Encrgy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Finencial

(Authonz.cd Conuactor Representative Name & Title)

ity Acti [ : 8302022
{Contractor Name) ’ : " (Date)

Pag .
LIHWAP CFDAN93.568



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I cectify that the responses to the
below listéd questions- ac€ true and accurate.

i. The Unigue Entity Identifier (UEI) number for your entity is: FND !AGMYJIDJ

..... =

2. liryour business or organization's preceding comp[cted fiscal year, did your busitiess or organjzation

rec€ive {1} 80 percent or more of your annuel gfoss revenue'in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grents, sub-grents, and/or.cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or moré in annual gross revenues n
from'U.S. federal coritricts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grarits, and/or coopérative agreements?

NO X _YES
If the onswcr to #1 above i3 NO, stop hore.
“If.the aaswer to #2 above is YES, please.answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in’ your business
or organizationthrough periodic reponts filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) OF section 6ID4 ‘of the Intemal.Revenue Code of 19867

NO X _YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

Ifthe answer to #3.above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation.of the fi vc most hlghly compensaied officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Neme: . Amount: _____
Name: . ! Amount: ___
Name: . i Amount: _____
" Name: Amount; _____
Name: . A.n.munt:

Puge 2 of 1
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

M EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

\.. Dennis Madino. President, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:
1.1 ami a duly elected officer of Community Action Piogram Befknap-Merimack Counties, Inc.

2. The following is a true-copy of a vote taken al a meeting of the Board of'Directors. duly célled
and held on January 13, 2022, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voling.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive -Diractor, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operaﬂng Offi cer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Financlal Offi icer, Steven.
Gregoire, BudgetAna.'yst Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on'behalf of C ommunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter into contracts .
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies. or departments and -
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications therelo, which may in hlslher ]udgment be desirable
or necessary to effect thé purpose of this vote.

31 hereby certify that said vote has not 'been amended or repeated and remains infull force and
effect.as of the date of the cortract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further
cenrh; that itis understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this ceftificate as eviderce

.that the person(s) listed above currently accupy the posulson(s) indicated and thal they have full
authiority to bind the corporation. To the ‘extent-that there are any limits on the authority 'of any
listed .individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshlre all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: __8/30/2022 Signature of Elected Officer Dl/n/mo M

Name: Denhis Martino
Title: President, Board of Directors

Rav. 111370022
MLCOA 7071 - Sevds marno

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administeative Office 2 industral Pack Ddve, Concord, NH
Phone: 603'225:3295 | | 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD_| 800 735-2964 ‘Fax: 603 228-1898
Website: capbm.org



State of New Hampshire
: | Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Seanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is o New Hampshire Nanprolit Carporstion registered
0 transact business in New Hampshire an Moy 28,1965, { further cenify that alf fees and docuwnents réquircd by the Skeictary of

State's office have beea received and'is in good sianding as far as this nfMice is concerned.

Business ID: 63021
Cenificaie Number: 6005774597

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF,

1 hereto sel my hand end causeto be altixéd
the Scal vl'ihe State of New Hampshire,
this %t day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Site




/tcono.’- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ~ ki

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATYER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RGGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER: THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR-ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

. BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE QOE£S NOT CONSTITUTE ACONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERGB) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If.the certificats holder Is_on ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pdicy(ies) mist have ADDITIONAL INSURED perldnl of bo endorsed.
4 SUBROGATIOM 18 WAIVED -sublact to the teims and conditions of the polley, cartaln policies mey requlre &n, sndorsdment A stalement on
this certificate dons not contes rights to the cmlﬂcmo holder.in llau of such mdorsamant(s).,

PRODUCER - st Andrea Nickin
FIAVCITAS surance | PogHE gur . 1603} 685-3218 [ 1o, ney,_ (603) 8434331
1300 Elm Sirdel AoomBsy.  mInCh.coru@crossagency.com
IXSUAE R{E) ARFORDING COVERAQE IMAKC &
Manchesier - NH_03101 a: Selecive ingurance Co, of 8C- 19259
WIYRED wunEn 8 : Granie.Staie Heatth Care snd Human Services Selt-
Mmpwmm»—umwm Inc. wsuwenr ¢ ; ' Federsilns Co 0
P. 0. Bax 1018 N Y
' . m!.u L
Concory . NH 03302 e ;
" COVERAGES ., - CERTIFICATE NUMBER: = 2132 AI22-2) WC 8 D40 - REVISION NUMBER: '

THIS 13 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHS TANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERN OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT. TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE 1SSUED ORt MAY PERTAIN: THE INSURANCE AFFORCED QY THE POLICIES OESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUZIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SMOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAMS.

TR TYP8 OF mesumancE . M0 | v SOLICY MURSER {MMOOAYYY] m, LTS
| COMMERCIAL DEMERAL LIARRITY ; EACH OCCURRENCS 3 1.000.000
+ bl .
| cuancsamnce [5d oceiim - - PR “ 3 1:009.000
- [ ME0 €8 (any oma prery | 20000
Al $2509940 AMONZ021 | 100172022 [ pnsomai g Ak nary |9 1.000.000
| G AGGREQATE Lt PPLIED PER: OENEAML AGGAEGATY 3 _3.000.000
[ roier DA% e PRCOUETS - cORioRagy | 3.000.000
onan: ‘ : : s
AUTOMGBILE UABRITY CEWENED L TN U 1,000,
[ P [ (Earcors) B o0
2] any auro } ] BOCRY NRRY (Pw panan) | 3
== SCHEDED
A [ .. | auvos omr aTos 52509940 V0017202Y | 100032022 | BOOILY MUY (Pur sccioen) [ £
MERED NOH-OWHEO i m -
|| autcs oy AUTCS ONLY
'
5 LTIV R s P ] EAGH QCCRAENCE ’ 3 3.000.000
A €xCess LAD CLALS-MADE, 82505940 : 10002021 | 1000V2022 | \eemgoary | + 5.000.000
oeo | | msresmon:s ’ * s
" [ woRxaRS Coner En3aTION ) . E&n 0 I Iam
AND EXPLOYERS LIABALITY vim - ;oo 4T T
e m}.""’"“. PSR CUTIVE (5] |#ea HCHS 20220000029 {3s.) NH 01012022 | 0101202y (b BACHACCIORNT . 1b .1:000.000
(Mandsery In ‘ -t 8L, DSEASE - EAEMPLOYER | 8 .
u—;mu : i 1,000.900
SCRIPTION OF QA RATIONS beiow -] et oisEasy. poucy Loai | g 1.000
! Limit $1.,000.000
Oiraciors 4 Offcers Lisbi) ! - . .
c SRR , 62471794 0410172022 | 041172023 | Deductiie 15,000
DESCAPNION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / YEMICLES (ACORD 191, Aodidensl Rewmarss Sched ‘-rrny o AEACRO0 N Mare apaee s roqvireg]

Aeter 0 poficy for exclusionsry endorsements end special provisions,

CERTIFICATE MOLDER ; *_ CANCELLATION

, SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIDEG POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
. THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL B DELVERED iN
Stite & Neiw, Hampahire: Degi of Energy ) ACCORDANCE WITH THE ROLICY PROVISIONS.

21 Suth Frdl Stest
5 AUTHORLIED REPRESEANTATIVE :

- Sue )0 : . : R
Concard "NH 03301 : WWWD
i

» © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resarved.
ACORD 25 (201003 ' The ACORD nama and 096 4ro rogistered marks of ACORD



Financfal"Statem_ents

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
ELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND.
 FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND
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.. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28;2021 AND-FEBRUARY 25,12020
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CERTIEIED PURLICACTOUNTANTS |
'To the. Board of.Diféctors WLFE%(:.I:E NORE)! rqmw.
Commuity Action Program- Belknap-Memmack Counties, Inc. " mﬂm RD:

Concord NewHampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Regport on the Findriclal Statements '

We havé dudited the accompanymg consolidatéd financial statements of Communlty Aétion.
Program Belknap—Memmack Countles, In¢. {a nonprofit orgamzahon) which ‘comprise the
consolidated stateménts. of financial pasition as of February 28, 2021 .and February 29, 2020,

and the relatéd consolidated stateménts of aclivities, functional expenses and cash ﬂows and’
notes'ta the-consolidated financial statements for the: years then ended-

anagement's Responslbmty for the Financial-Statefments
Management is. responsible for the- preparation and fair presentation of .these consolidated
financial statemerits i in -accordance with accounling principles-generally accepted if the' Unijted
States of America; th:s Includes the design, implementation, and mainterianice of -infarnal
control relevant.to the preparahon and fair preséntalion of consaclidated ﬂnancia’l staterriants
that.are free from. taterial missiatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

Auditors’ Resgonslbt_htz '

Qur responsibildy isto -express an ‘opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on gurf audits.’ We conducted ‘our audils in accordance with auditing standards; generally
accapted In thé- United -Stites.of America and the standards apphcable to fi nanaal audits
contained-in- GovermnmentiAuditing Standards, issued by the Comptraller General. of the United
‘States.. Those standards require-that we plan and parform the audits to obtalh raasonabld
‘assurance -about whether the consohdated financlal statements -are frée “from - materiat
musstatement

An audit Involves performmg proeedures to obtain audnl evidence about the amounts ‘and
disclosurés in the consolidaled financlal .statements. The procedures selected depend on’ the
aliditors” Judgrﬁent mcludmg the. assessment of the nsks of material missiatement of ‘the
consoiidated financial slatements, whelher due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessmenits,. the auditor considers Intemal control relevant tc the entity's preparation and' fair
.presentation of the consolidated ﬁnancnal statements ‘in order to design audit pracedures, that
are appropriate in the, circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an'.oginion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemat control. Accordmgly we express no Such opinion. An audlt
also incjudes evaluatlng the sappropriateness of accounling " policles used and the
reasoriableness: /of -Significant accountmg estimates made. by management, as' well " as
avaluatlng the overall presentation of the consol:dated financlal statements.



-

We bellevia.that- theaudlt ewdence' wé have obtained i is. sufficient and ‘appropriate- leprovtde a
basns for our,audlt opinion

-Og?n!o
'ln aur opinion, the consoltdaled financial statements. réferred lo-abcve presént fdidy; 1n all

fiatenial. respects. ‘thé- financla) position of Community Action Programi Belknap,Merrtmack
Cduniies, Inc.'as of February 28, 2024, and the changes in néf assels and cash flows fof the
year then ended in accordance wtth accounhng pfinéiples. generally accepted in Ihe" United
States of Amertca \

Othér information

Our ‘audit was conduycted o the purpose of forming am opinion on the.consolidated firandial -
statements es a8 whofe ‘The accompanying schedule of éxpenditurds of federal: awards as
réquured by:Title 2 U.S:- Codé:of Fedéral Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform; "Adrhinistrative
Requtrements Cost Pdnc:p!es and Audit Requirerments for Faderal Awarts, is. presented for
puiposes of. addmonal analysis - and i6 not ‘@ required part of the consoltdated financial
statements: Such lnforrnatton s the résponsibility of management and was defivéd trom and. :
relates directly ‘to the undertylng daccounling and -other records used ‘10 prepare the: .
oonsehdated fi nanctél statements: The information has beén subjectéd to the: duditing
proeedures applled in the audut of the consolidated financial statérments and certain addtttonal'
procedyres tnt;tudung companng and reconciling such information dtrectly to the- undedymg
accountrng ‘and. othar recerds used to iprepare the. consolidated: financial ‘sfatefents. ot-to, the
- consolidated r nancial, statements themselves and ‘other additional .procedures In ‘accordance
“with: audmng standar‘ds genemlly a¢qepted lh the United States.of. America., [n‘out oplnton ‘the
informatton is fa:dy stated in all matertal respects, in relation.to-the consoltdated i nancial
stalernents: es a'whole:

-.Other Regorﬂng Régulréd by Government’ Auditiniq. Standards .
In aceondartce ‘withs Govefnrnent Auditing Sténderds, ‘we. have also Issued” our- repcrt1 dated

Febriary 14, 2022, on our ¢onsidérdtion of Community .Action Progtam Belknap—Merrtmack
Counttes Inc s lntemal «contiol over financial reporting -and an our tesls of. its compllance wlth :
~oerta|n prowslons of faws, régulations,.contracis, and grant-agreements and. othér matters The
PUfDOSB of that repoit Is:io destribe the. scope of our testing of internal control over financial .
repofting 'and oomphance :and-the results of that testing.. and not to provide an opinioh on
intémal controf over financial repomng or on compliance. That report is an. tntegral part of an
audit performed in'accordance with Government Auditing. Standards in.considering Commumty
‘ Actton Progrem Betknap-Memmack Counties, inc.’s intemal contrg! -over- financia reportmg
and compliarice..

jiwm_/&bw d Reburtd.

‘Concord, New Hampshnre
Febmary14 2022 _ (
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'CURRENT ASSETS
Cash s
Aécouniy recelvabié
Invenlofy
Prépaid expenses
Ihvesuments

Total cuignt-gs3ols
'PROPERTY
l.and buzldmg; ahd lmprdvements.

- Equipment; ﬁm‘uture and-vehicles
COnswcmn in‘process

Tota! proparty
L&£5 sccumufated deprecialion
Property: nét’

" ;OTHER ASSETS o
‘Césh éscrow ond réserve funds,
"Tenant security daposits
Duie froin.iatated painy

ibtal othetgseets
‘TOTAL'ASSETS
_ LIABI

‘CURRENT LIABIUTIES
"Gurent portion of notes peyabia
lJna of credit .

AAccoun!s payabla
_Apcrued expenses
Refuridable advances

" Totat current liabititlad

LONG:TERM LIABILITIES
Paycheck Pmtchon Progreni ioan

Nétes paysbia, less current portior shown ebove

Tensn! secufily-deposits
Totgl ligtdniés.
"‘NET ASSETS
' Wllhout doner resticions
Wiih donor riestrléﬁons

Toial nat dsseis

ToTaL LIABILIT]ES AND NET ASSETS

AND N

Sea Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3

3 695706 § 549,028
3,762,809 ‘2,658,855 -
55,895 22916
73.709 44,159.
127,906 110,078
4,920,175 .3'.'233_163!'
7148516 5,644,770
5.117.020 5.652:539:
18,126 =
13,281,662 11:197,308:
7,630.280 .6,695428
. 5.842 372 4601881
85437 .
g.881 -
[ 139 441
72,118 139‘.@'1 .
$ 10634865 % 7.924:358
SETS
$ 213444  § 201245
380.028 550,000
1,525,832 1,180,635
" 788,851 757.699
1030841 __1,0845% .
3,945,196 73,754,385
1,035,300, -
830,607 614.253
8,881 -
46,827,074 4_,5_63,&&3.
2,758,059 2092804
4,048,832 382,814
3,807,791 3,355,708
$ 10634865 3. 7:624356



cousoupmén STATEMENT OF ACTWITIES

FOR.THE. !EAR ENDED FEBRUARY' 38, 2021

'REVENUES AND omeﬂ SUPPORT
Granl ewards
Renlal Lnoome
cher funds;
'ln-klnd g
Umted Wev |
Intaresl Inooma
Réallzed gafn on'sala of .equipment

T ql_a}-ravenuejs and-:blher-suppqn

- NET-ASSETS RELEASED FROM -
'RESTRICTIONS

T’bu‘u

EXPENSES
‘Safartes endwages
Payrol) tsxos; and benems
vael
OccupanCy

Other costs
Depnamatnon
In-klnd

Fotal éxpansas

', CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE.GAIN ON
INVESTMENT-IN LIMITED PARTNERSHiP

.GAIN' ONINVESTMENT IN LIMITED P,Aﬂfueixsmp
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET.ASSETS. TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, ENO OF YEAR

Without Dénor- Wlth Donor o
Rosirictions.  Restrictiong Towul
520625325 § - § 20625335

123557 L <123,657
2,375,403 3,733,625 6,108,028
480,035 - 400,035,
5,297 - 5. 297
383 - 8.
3,500 = 3,500.

23623600 3733525 27,357:125

3047507  (3.047.507)

26,671,107 886,018 27,357,125
9,010,668 - 9,010,668
2,538,067 - 2,538,067

145,913 s - 145,913

11,428,443 E 1420493

11,796,741 : 11,796,741
1,599,872 . 1,599.672

458,009 - 458,000 -
490,034 . 490,034
27,468,847 : 21,488;847
(797,740) 686,018 (113.722)
84 397 e 64397
(733.343) 686,018 (47.325)
2,992,894 362,814 3,355,708
499 408 499,408
§ 2758050 § 1048832 S 3807191

See Notes to-Consolidated Findnclal ‘Statements

)



. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES:
FOR THE. YEAR ENDED. NDED.FEBRUARY 29, 2020

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Gramt Bwards
Olher !unds
rn-k!nd '
.Unﬂfqd Way-

Total réveniies and other suppoIt

7 NETASSETS RELEASED FROM
- RESTRICTIONS

.Tc:;ial

EXPENSES
Satarﬁas and wages
Paymll taxes.and banef {s
Travel
Oocupancy
Prograrn senﬂces
‘Othercosts
erruc_la_t_ion
In-Kind

Tols] expérises
CHANGE IN.NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING.GF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Wlthout Oonor With Donor

$ 18,276,247  § - § 276247
2,437,366 12.886,021¢ 5,423,387

920,759 920,759

11,938 - 11,938

21646310 | 2.085.021.- 248321331
3330622 _ (3130622 | -
24776032 ___(144.601) . 34,6323
9,213,867 - 9,213,087
2,508,455 - 2,508;455"
322,894 . 322,884
1,393,046 . +,303:048
9,231,697 - 8,231,697
1,634,451 . 1:634°451.

401,166 - 401,166

920,759 - 930,759
25,626,335 : 15:626,335
849.403)  (144.601) (994,004)

3.842 207 507,415 : '4,346.712

$ 2992894 § 362,814 $. .3.355:708

Sea Notes to Consolidéted Financial Siatements

5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES'

EOR lﬂg !QR ggggg EEBBUAB! 28, 2021

Program  Mariagemerit Total

'Salanes and wages, § 8423285 § 567:382 ‘5. 9,010,668
Paymll laxes ‘8 bengMy 2.308:280 229,777 2,538,067
. “Trayal : . 145,104 809 145,913
Okcupancy. ' 1.283.121 136,322 1,420,443
Program, SeMcas ¥ 11,796,741 - 11786, 741

‘Other costs: ' :
AcéOuﬁtlng fees. - 80,013 ‘80,013
Legal foes 19,604 - 19,604
Supphes -185,804: 30.710 196,514
Poswge and ahupplng ; 56,087 8.986- 65 073
-Equipment. réntaFand-faintendnce 8,736 o 8,73
Prinling and public'a'liﬁns 34 562 3,531 38,113
-Conferences converntions-and meeungs 6§32 : ok N 632
hterast 39595 - 22,938, 62,533
.lnsurance . 123,704 '»2-.2,.5'25 151 232
Membership fees. , 10,040 7.018. 17,059
Uity and magintanance’ 160,837 62,548 253,386°
Compuiar services 47,178 8,660 ,55:838°
OIhar g 584,082 88,257 .653 239
Depteciatiori 458,009 - 458,009,
(nkind 490 0. - 480,034
Total functiona! éxponses e $ ‘26.194,—346- $ 1.27450% ‘S 27,468,847

I

Sae Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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-Sa!arles and wagss
Payl‘oll wixes and Benefi 113
Trave!
Occupancy
Program Servicis
Other cosis:
" Accounlifg.fees
Legal foés,
Supp!ies
'Postage and’ shlpping

STATEME!!T OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
-OR. HE _EA.R ENDEDFEBRUARY:28 2020

Equ}pman! rental and mainiehance

Prinllng and pubilcatlons

Con!arencas convenuons anqi meslings

" Interest-

Insurance.
.Membershlp fees
Utility-and: mamtenanco
Compister- seMces
Other

Bepreclallon

In-l_dﬁd

“Jotat fyfictiohal éxpenises

‘See Notas o Consolidated Financlal $tatements

7

Program Management m

$ 8797236 § 416831 9:213,867
2,468,991 39.464 ‘2,508,455
322870 24 322,894
1.225,265 167,781 © 1,393,048

'9,231,697 . 0,231,607
475 60,771 . 61,246
o : 9,261 ‘9,281
214,778 31.442 246,220
19,055 34,388 .53,454
3,627 275 3,802
27,100 8:562 33671
27,248 4,662 31,910
57,543 15,742, 73.255
133,619 5,049 - 139, 568
12,862 7,586 207448
170,336 48114 218.450.
51,908 - 51,808
663,656 27,502 691,158 -
401,168 > 401,186
620,759 - 920,758
$ 247502007 ¢ 876135 '§ 25678335



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28; 202{ AND FEBRUARY 28,2020

/ 2021° ‘2026

CASH FLGWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . o
Change In netpssels ; R 3 {47.325) § (994,004)
Ad|uslmenls lo recondie change innel.assels to - : T )

- nat cash- used in operating aclivities: '

: Depreciation : ' 458,009 401168
Inlefes! or deferred financing costs . : 484 al’
Reslized gainvon sale of equipiant {3,500) =

.Galh on’Investmesit in Jiimited partnership . (64,397} g =
bocfease (Increaae) In current assels:

, Accoints recelvable- (1.203,458Y (235 814)
lnvenlory ; (32.979) (i 18)
Prepaid gxpenses (18 723): © 8,473

‘Deciéase (increase) in cuitrent liabilities! _ }
-Accountd. payable: 356,371 91,470
Acciued expenses 23,890 {308.746)
Refundablc advances ' (47 ,575) .-BB,1§('4:,

' NEf CASH-USED IN PERATING ACTIVITIES : (579.203) . (951,390}
CASH FLOWS FROM. INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeqs from sale of property ‘3,500 R

Additfonis’to property {818,410) (268,634}

Investmants ' . : : {17,018) _{7,558)

NET'CASH USED; IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES- . (632,828) . (278,480}
CASH:FL.OWS. FROM FINANCING-ACTIVITIES -

Paychieck: ‘Protéction toan proceeds ) 1.835, 300

" Nelrepayments.on liiid of ciedil- s I69 872) 580, 000
Repayment of lorig.lérm dabi ’ 199,152) _(165 155)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY-FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,560,178 .384:844
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 354,145 . (882.738).
CASH AND RESYRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR - 549,028 1,411:782
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM : :

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 62032 i s

CASH AND RESTRICTED ‘CASH BALANCE; END OF YEAR $ 965,203 % 549,026

Seé Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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. CONSOLIDATED SYAYEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTRUED)
o o § l Y . - L] Y . N

-SUPPLEEENTAL DiSCLOSURE oF CASH FLOW INFOMHON
"Cosh Dﬂd m tho'yesr bor Imr.rcsl

BUPPLEMENTAL DISCTOSURES OF uohé#sri INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTMTIES'

mﬂsm;smuummmmw-
mnu
Pmmw-w
saammom ) -
) nﬁ;wﬁfwﬂnu'eu mm@mmmm

Tmutarofpbmpmmmmw
y Acmmmuc o

Total trenaigrof (apiides trom rewhyconsaidated LP

‘I’ahlhmh:olpartnéu'apﬂdm nowly consoliatog LP-
Pertnership. ml wwbushnw«dubmnmlmm:wnmu

“totel rundter ol pastnery’ caplta).(rom nawy céiisoddated LR

Eoo Notes to Condolldated FinanciarStatoments.

6251 § T

$ 248§ .
ey S
580,089 -
‘8132 %

i ]

$_ 1,001,544 § -
§  egs 8 -
1.082 F
8132 ;
IV 5

b 080330 §. §
$ 459408 8. :
203638 :
30348 §- -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED: FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY. 29, 2020

-'fORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING. POLICIES

. Nalure of Or gamzatlon ;

'Comrnumty Action Program’ Belknap — Meifimack Counties;. Inc. {the Organrzaann) is'a
New Harnpshrre nOnprof it organization thal-serves nutritional, health, living: and support
nggds of the “low, incgme.and eldedy clients in the two county service. areas, .as wall as
state wsde These ser\nces are prowded with the financial sugport of van0us federal

“gtate, oounty and. Ioca1 organizations.

-.Principles of-Consolidation

The' :¢onsdlidated; fi nancaal "Stateménts include the accounts. of Commumly Actron-

Program of Belknap-Merﬁmack Counties, Inc.,.and the followlng entlties as Communrty
- Action. Program ‘of Belknap-Merrimack Counities, inc. has both an. economic intergst’and
control of the entities lhrough ‘a majority voting. intergsl in their govemmg board Al
-sngmf‘cant tman:ompany ftems -and transactions' have been ehmrnated from bas:c

-3' Sandyl.edge'um:ted Partnership
5 CAP BMC Deveiopment Corporation

Basis of Accou _g_l_r_t_g

‘The:"aécompanying oonsoladated ﬁnancral staiemenls have beén prapared .on ‘the
:4c6rugl Basis of. accow’mng in .actordance with the -a¢éounting pr‘rnc:ples generauy
-'aocepted in the Umled State of America.

-Basis;of Preséntstion.

‘The consolidated financial statements of the Orgamzahon have been prepared in
..accordance with U.S, generally accepled accountlng prindiples, whrch reqyire the
Organlzat!on o report. finformation regarding its finangial position and. activities,
" according to.ihe- following nel asset classnﬁcahons

Net assets without donor restrlcrions include net assets that are’ not:
.subject to any dofior-imposed restrictions and may be expended fof any-
purpose In performing the primary objectives of the Organlzallon These
nel &sséls may be used at the discretion of the Organization's”
management and board of drrectors :

.Net assets _with donor_restrictions. iinclude net assats ‘subject to
.stlpulatrons Imposéd by donors -and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary i nalure; those restrigtions will be met by actions of: the

' Organlzatton or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are- porpatual
in.'néturé; whereby the donor has.stipulated the funds be maintained in-
- perpétuity.

10
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NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY .28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020,

-Donor restrlcfed contrtbutrons are reportéd -as increases in- net .assets with- donor!
restnctlons When réstrictions ‘expire, net agsets aré recless:ﬁed frorn net assets with
‘donior restrictl‘ons to' net'assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of aclivities,

The Orgamzatlon had net. assets with donor. restrictions of $1,048,832"and $362,814at.
February .28, 2021 and February 29, 2020 réspectively. See Noter 13.

incoime.Taxes ’
_ .Communtty Action 'Program' of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Ing; Is organized :as a
'nonprof t corporatron and & éxempt from federal income taxes under’ Intemial Revenue

.t

‘Code«Section 501(0)(3) The: Internal Revenue Servuce has delermined them.to be
other than .a private foundatron

The Organlzation filés information returns in the United . States and the. State ‘of New
Hampshire: The Orgemzauon is subject o examinations by tax authorttres fof threé
years. :

'CAP BMC Development Corporation is taxed as a *C’ Corporatron under-the Intemal
Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deférred income taxes. under the asset
:and Hability method In.accordance with Accounting Standards Cadification No.. - 740°
r(ASC*740) “Acoountrng for-Income Taxes". The objective of this. method is to establtsh
deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the. fir nanclal
réporting . basts and the tax basis.of the Company's assels and Irabtttttes at the enacted
‘tax ‘rate- expected to be in effect when such amouints are realized -of :settled. ASGC 740
Zatso requtred deferred. tax. assets and liabilities to be shown separately There "ard. no:
deferred ‘tax assets or lrabnlmes The Corporallon has ro federal net operatrng Ioss

) -carryfonvards availabile at February 28, 2021 and 2020.

‘Sandy Ledge: Limited is taxed as-a paftnership. Federal income taxas are rof payable
of provldecr by thie- partnershrp Earnmgs and tosses are. tncluded In the partners federal
~requ1red 1o filg i lncome tai returns wrth the Slate of New Hampshrre and pay an uncome
tax atthe state s statutory rate.

Aocounttng Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accountrng.for Inoome Taxss,
estebtished the. midimum threshold for recognizing, and .a system for méasuning, the
benefits of tax- ratum positions$ in consolidated financiat $tatements. The. Orgamzatron
has. analyzed 1tstak position taken on its income tax retuins for the past three' years,
-and" has concluded, that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in- the:
Orgamzatlon,s consolrdated financial staterhents.

11



NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021'AND. FEBRUARY 29‘ 2020

Property-
.Prqperty and equupment is-recorded at cost.or, if donated at the approximate:fair value

“af.the date: or the-donation. Assats ‘purchased with-a useful life in-excess.of ofie 'year
and. exoeedmg $5, 000 8re capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
fundtng sources Depreciatlon is computed on the straight- -line.basls over the estimated
usgful Irves-of the. related assets as follows:.

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment; fumiturs and vehictes 3 -7 years .

Use of Estimates

The. preparatson ‘of oonsolrdated financial statements in contormity with- Unlted States
generally acoepted accounting principles.requires management. lo makeé: estimates and
agsumptions that aﬂect certain réported amounts of assets-and tnabllrtles and drsclosura
of-cantingent. assets and.liabilities at the date of the bonsolldated financial statements'
and .the reported :afounts. of fevenues and “expenses during the. reportmg period.
Actual results cOuId differ frgm those esumates

‘Cash and Cash Egulvalents
“For purposes of the: :consplidated statemants of cash: flows, the Organizatign: considers .

all.liquig’ investrénts, ‘purchased with ofiginal maturities. of three months'or tess t6-be
cash. equivalents.”

The' Organtzatlon maintains Its cash In bank, deposlt accounts, which st limes. may
exceed federally insured limits, The Orgamzation has: not experienced: any los$esin
‘Such dccourits and beligves.it i5 not exposed lo any sngmr icant risk. wnh respect to thése
accounts ]

The tollowmg {able ‘provides a reconciliation of-cash and restficted cash reported wnhm
the: :statements of financial pésition. thaf'sum to e’ tofal in the stateémerits of cash flows

RN

&s of yearend:

‘Cash, operations | $ 899,766° -$ 549,026
Cash ascrow and reserve funds 65,437 . -
Total ¢agh-and restricted cash $.965203 '§._540.026

‘Contribited Services.

Donated :services are recogmzed as .contributions in 'accordance with- FASB ASC No.
958, Acoounrmg for'Conlributions Received énd Contributions Made, if the services: (a)
créate or :efhance. non:financial .assels or (b) require specialized- skllls; and woutd-

ssss

otherwise be purchased by the Agency.
Volufiteers: provided various services throughout the: year that are not reoogmzed as

contributions in-the.consolidated financial statements §ince the recognltron criteria under
FASB ASC. No. 858 were not met. 9
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'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL: STATEMENTS N
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY _29 2020

In-Kind Donétions f Noncash Transactions.

.Bonated’ ?ac:lttles services and supplies are refiecled as revenue 'and expense in the
-accgmpanying :consolidated; financial stateménts, if.the criteria for recognition. js met.
This: represents’. the estlmated feir value for the :service, supplies and. ‘space 'that the «
Orgariizatior’ might inéue under normal operatlng activities. The Organlzation recelved
$490,035 and $920,759 in dbnated faciliiés, services and supplies foi the years-énded
‘Febryary. 28,2021 and Fabruary 29, 2020, respectively, as follows:

. The Organlzat!on recelves contrlbuted professionai services. that .are requlred to be
frécofded in dccordance with FASB ASC. No. 958. The estimated fair vajue-of these
services was determinied to be $18,937 and $52,181 for the years ended February 28,

2021 :@ndl February29; 2020, respectively. .

The Organlzahon also receives Gonfributed food commodities and :Gther. goodsthat are
'requ:red to be" recarded :in ‘accordance with FASB. ASC No. 958. Th - -astimated faic
value of  these:food commodities and goods was determined to-be. $471,098 and
$868,578. for the: years ‘anded February 28, 2021 and February 29, 2020, respectlvely

Advedtisin
The Orgamzaluon expenses advemsmg costs as they are incurrad Total advemsmg

.cosls for the: years. .ended February 28, 2021 and Februafy' 29, 2020 folaled $14,287
and:$46:899; respectlvely

lnvantory
lnventory consasls of weatherization supplies and-work in process and.is vaiued 3l ther
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method:

Néw Accountmg Pronouncemeng
In May: 2014, the Financial’ Actounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Acéounting .

-Standards ‘Update (ASU) ‘No.-2014:09; Révenue from Corlragts with Cisstomeis (Togic,
606) The ASU" add all subsequently issued cIanfymg ASUs replaced mosl; exishng ’
revenue’ recegnition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded
-distlosures ralating to: he natyre, arnount timing, and uncertainty of revenye :arid cash
‘!lows ansmg frofn confracts with customers. The. Orgamzatton adoptéd the neéw
-gtdndard effective Match 11,2020, the first day of the Orgaruzahonst' scal.year Using the:
modlﬁed -retrospective approach The adoption did. not resull in ‘a2 change fo the
acoounlmgr for the applicable revenue streams; as such, no cumulallve effect
-adjustmem was recorded:

Reverue Recognition

Amounts receivéd from conditional grants and contracts for specific, ‘purposes are
genarally recogriized as ingome o the extent that related expenses’ ‘and ‘conditions are
incurréd or met, ‘Conditiondl grants received prior to the conditions be:ng met are
reported as rafundabie advances. Conlributions of cash and other assets are. reported
as. with donor restactions if they are received with donor Imposed stupulahons that fimit -
the ‘use- of the, donated .assets. However, If a restriclion 1S fulfilied in the same period:in
'wh:ch the contribution is‘received, the Organization reports the support as without donbr
restrictions.

13.



gram Servlce Reveiiue.
Program SQrvice revenue Is recogmzed as revenué whern the servrces are: pen'ormed

- Rental: Revenue -
ThHé Orgamzauén derives: révenues from the rental of apaftment umts Revenues are
reoogmzed ‘as. Income; ‘monthly, ‘when rents become- fue, and: qontnol of the
-qpartmanl unilg-is* transferred o the lessees. The individual leases are for a'teri of.
one year and are. cangélabie by the tenants. Control-of the leased units is. lransferred
‘to-the lessae in an. amount that reflects the-consideration the Partnershnp expecrs 29
-.be entltled to: im ex¢hiangé for the lsased units. The cost, mCurred to obtain the lease:
will.be expensed as incurred.

Performance-Oblidatibns and Contract Assels #ind Liabiities .
The perforthance obligations related to the lease contracts'and program: services are-
:sausr edgta pomt in‘time. Revenye from performance obhgahons salisfiedata paéint.
: .m tiria ‘consist of monthly rental payments and fees for program 'sefvices, Contract,
assets o7 e year ended February 28, 2021 were $2.378, ‘Contract liabilittes for the
- year snded Fabruary 28, 2021 were $9%1. There were no oontract assets or’
‘habrl:tnes'for the i year ended February 29, 2020,

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of provrdrng 1he vanous pmgrams and olher actwrtnes have been presemed ity

:bean altocated among the program serwces and supportmg actwmes beneﬂted
_Expenses are charged to:each program based or the direct expenses inch'ad -QF,
estumated usage based ‘an time spent.on each program by staff.

Expense: - Method of allocation

Wages and benefits  Time and effort

Depieciatipn Actualassets used by program
Ali other expanses. Diredl -assignment

,-.LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Orgamzatlons fi nancral assets as of February 28, 2021
andFebruary' 29 '2020:

2021 2020
-Fmanclal adssets at year end: :
Cash and-dash aquivalerits, undessgnated $ 889766 °$ 549,026
Accounts receivable 3,762,809 2:556,855
Clnvesiments, - . 127,996 110,078
{Cdsh escrow and réserves 65437 . -
Totsi fiiangial agsefs ¢ 4846008 _ 3215859
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NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE_YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021-AND. FEBRUARY 29,2 2020

Less:g emounts not: avallable to be.uséd wilhin one year:

Nat assets with donor restnctlons 1043832 ':'3_62.-,81'4
Reserye funds . . 60,212
Afnounts not'available within one.year - ' 1 J09.044 __ 362,814

Financial.assets available to theet general

expsnditures oyer'lh'e:néxt_'t\v'ely_e months . - R_3736964 § 2853145 -

it is the: Orgamzauons goal to maintain financial -assets to meet 60 days: of operabng.
‘expénses which approximates $4,360,000 and $3,995,000 respéctively,.at Febriiary 28,
2021 ‘and Febryary 29.020. The Organization has a line. of credit with $219,672 .and
$50 000 ‘availdble to borrow on, at February 28, 2021 ahg February 29, 2020,
respeclively

f
ACCOUNTS.RECEIVABLE
Accounts recewabre are stated at the amount managemenl expecls to collect: from,
balances outstandmg at year end Balances that-are still outslandlng after manqgement
has used:téasonable collection éforts are written' off through a charge' to. the valuation
‘allowance and-a.credit té accouiits rece:vable The. aliowanée for: uncollecub!e ‘accounts
was eslimated 16, be zero .at February 28, 2021 and February ‘29, -2020. The
Orgamzatron has no’ polscy for charglng interest.on overdue dccounts.

REFUNDABLE'ADVANCES
Granls feceived in‘advaiice are. recorded s refundable advances @nd. recognszed as

revenus in“the period In“which the related services of expenditures ere performed or. -

incyrred. - Funds JeceWed in advance -of .grantor conditions belng ‘met aggregatéd
$1, 036 941 apd $1084,516 as of February 28, 2021 .and Februgry 29, "2020..
resper:twely

R'ETIR‘E'MENT'PL'AN

employees The cost of the plan- is charged t pregrams admlnistered by the
' Organlzahon The. ‘expense- of the plan for the yéar ended’ Febniary 28 '2021 :and
February 29, 2020.totated $493,103 and $181.057. respectively. I

LEASED:FACILITIES :

Fatilities. occupied- By the 'Organization for'its community service programs-are Ieased"
under various eperatlng leases. The lease terms range from-month to-month to twanty.
‘years, For the yéar- ‘ended.February 28, 2021 and February 29, 2020, the. annual lease.
.expense for the leasad factlmes was $542, 317 and. $546,861, respectwely
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR; THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 20,2020

This:approximaty fuure midimum léaseé payments:on {lie-above. leases'are as follows:

Yedr Ended '

Eeb[ugg ZQ - Amount
2022 _ | T s 472,703
2023 445235
.202.4 411 .33.4
2025 , 245038 -
2026 88,762

Thereafter 776,979
Total - §.2.440.551
ACCRUED.EARNED TIME

Thet Organlzahori has :acciued. . liability for future annual leave time fhat its employees-
.have eamgd end vested with the employees In'the amount of $415,580.and $341,.532 at
Fébraary 28.202% and Fabroary 29; 2020, respectively:

BANK LINE. OF CREDIT

'The Organrzalron ‘hés .a $200,000 revolving line. of, credit agreement (the-ling)’ w1!h 9

bank thatis-due.of demand The line calls for monthly vaiiable interest payments based

on-the wait. Stiget Joumej Prime Raie (4.75% at. February 28, 2021 and February 28,

,2020) Plus - 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is sacired. by all the

: -Organrzatron § dsSets. There was no balance outs!andmg at February 28, 2021 There
‘was:d balance of: $200; 000- -outstanding at February'29, 2020

revolvmg Irne of. credrt agreement (the Irne) in the amount of $400, 000- wrth a ‘bank lhet
is dué on démand.. Thé line.talls for monthly variatilé intergst: payments based 9n the
LIBOR Tate: (2 62% and 4 02% al- February 28, 2021 and February 26, 2020,

-respectwely) The line is secured by all the Organization’s assels. There was a balance .
of $380,028 and-$350;000 outstanding at February 28, 2021 and Fébruary 29, 2020,

respectively,

.cONCENTRATION OF RISK

For ‘the years. énded February .28, 2021 and February 29, 2020, epprexrmately
311, 400 000" (42%) and $12 100,000 (49%), respeclwely. of the Organization's total
revenue was. recetved frof the Depariment of Health and Human Servrc.es The, future
scale and_natiire. of the Organization is dependert upon continued supporl from ‘this'
-depariment.
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: -NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE. YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021 AND-FEBRUARY-29, 2620

* LONG TERM-DEBT

Long tenn debt consis;ed of the’ followmg as of February 28, 2021 angd February 28,

2020:

5.50%. Nole-payable fo a financial msmuuon iny-

monthly Inslalln‘ienls of “$1, 634 through July 2039:
The npté'is secured by property of the Organization.

'§.75% 'note pavablé to a: financial institution In
rnonthly Instaltménts tor principal -and interast of

$13:912 through July 2023. The note is secured by

propeny of the 0rgamzauon for Lakes, Reg:on Family

.Centér

3.00% note payable fo the City of Concord for
Ieasehold Impmvemenls in. monthly mstallments for

note: lS secured by pfOpeny of the Orgamzat:on for the
agency administrative bu:lding regriovations.

7 00%. note payab1e to-a’bank in.monthly instaliments..

for prin¢ipal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The-note Is' sacured by.a first réal estate mortgage

and assugnmem .of rents. and .leases on property’

locafed ‘in -Concord, .New: Hampshiré for Early Head
Start.

Non:interest bearlng noéte payable by Sandy Ledge to
New. Hampshlré Housing deferred until June 1, 2034

or untii the project s sold or reﬂnanced or sufplus

cash -is' available. The, riote is ‘collateralized by :a
-mortgage onreal estate.

Tolai IOng-term debt before unamortized deéferred
* financing cost

Unamoftized deferred financing costs

* .Leésg amoynts due.within. one year

Long tefri portion
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zoi{f 2020

$ 225459 § 232259

375,827 520,492
50,507 57,848
164,553 204,899

.
L. 343,081 _
1,159,427 1,015;408
6288y . .
1,153,141 1,015,498
213444 . 201,245
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'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE.YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 2912020 2020

. The"scheduled riafurities of idng-lerm debt as of Febriary-28,-2021 werié'as follows:

'Year Ending ‘
February 28 Amount
2022 $ . 213,644
2023 - . 226,567
2024 146.511.
2025 : . 16,749
] 2026 17,517
Thereafter- . 532353
‘PROPERTY.AND EQUIPMENT

- Propefty” and. equupmsnt consisted of the following as of February 28, 202t and

Feanary 29 2020:

2021 2020

Land _ § 279340 $ 168676
Building and improvéments 6,867, 176 5 376 094
'Equipment and vehicles 6.117:020 5,852 539.
Construction ifi process _ 18,126,

. | ‘ 13,281:662 -15'_1.;19?'.;‘3'0_9 :
‘Less scqumilated depreciation: .7,639,29'0 6,695,428

F‘ropeﬁy and equipment, net $ 5842372 & 4,501.861

Depreclatlon expense for the years ended February 28, 2021 and February ‘29, 2020

‘tolaled. $458:009 and $401,168, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES.

The. Organization receives grant; funding from: various sources. Under-tfie term’s. of. thdse

-agreements the Orgaruzatuon is required (o use the furids within a certain penod and for

purposés speclﬁed by the goveming laws and regulations. If expéndntures were: found~
not to have’ been made In comphance with the laws. and regulatrons ‘the Qrgarizatlon
might. be ‘required to, repay the funds. No provisions have béén made’ for this

contingéncy because specific.amounts, |f any, have not.been determined or. assessed‘
:as of Fabruary 28,2021.
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: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' .
FOR THE.YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 28, 2020

13. -NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
. 'Nét assets: with donar’ restnclrons -are avallable for the followmg ‘specific program
services as of February 28; 2021 3nd February. 29 2020:

NH Food Pantry Coallt!on ¥ 663 3 '663.
Senior Center ‘ 142,817 141,144
Elder Servicas - 499,201 2,887
Mary Gale . - 24082
NR: Rotary:Food Challenge 5,058 5,068
Symmer: Feedmg 60,433 . 18840
Comman Pantry - 5,512 4,764
Caring Fignd , - 8,791 5,064
Agéncy ~FAP : 12,604 4,751
Agency Head Start 224,847 145, 7"47
Agency — FRIPN 87,387 -

: Cor‘nmunily Crisls 350 2, 550
Other Programs 11,169 3,304
Total it assels with ddnor reslrictions §__1_Q5_Q,§§3 §_§§.Z..§J.‘i

14: 'RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS . _ _
Thé OrganiZatipn serves as the management agent for the fallowing organizitions:

‘Related Party Funttion-
Belmon| Eldedy Housing, Inc. HUD Proparty-
Epsom Eldedy-Housirg, Inc. HUD-Property
Alton Housing for thé Elderty, Inc. HUD Properly
Pembroke Housmg far lhe Elderiy. inc. HUD: Property-
Newbury Eidery Housing Inc. : -HUD Property"
Kehrsarge Elderly Housmg Inc. HUB. Property
Riversige: Hous:ng Corporallon HUD Properly
“Twin Rwers Communlty Coiporalion : Propeny Developmeni
Ozanam Place, inc: Transitional Suppértive
) - Services. '
TRCC Housing Limited Paftnership | Low Income Housing Tax
' & ‘Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant:
selection (for the HUD. properies), HUD compliance: (for the HUD- prdperies), and
‘maintenance-of property.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020

. The total” amount due from the. relaléd ; paruas (collectnvely) «at February 28, 2021. ‘and

February: 28, 2020 was: 3181 384. and $198,763, respectwely. and’ is. incluged ‘in
acoounts recelvables

RECLASSIFICATION
Certaln amounts and accounts. from the prior year ﬁnanmal statemeénts have ‘beén
reclassified té enhance the comparab:llty with the presentation of the current year.

FAIR:VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Commumty Action Program Belknap Memmack Counties, Inc. has alsg invested money
relatlng 10- 1ts Fix-it programin, cedam mutual funds. The fair value 6f the mutual funds
totaled “$126,996 .and 3109 078 .al February 28, 2021 and February 29, 2020

. réspeactively:

ASC Topic No: 825-10, Financial Instriments, provides .a deﬁntllon 6f fair value which
-focuses on ‘an axit -price. rather than an éritry price, establishes a framewgrk in, genemuy
acceptéd atcounting' pdnqples for measuring fair value'which émphasizes that fair- valle is
a market-based [easurement, nol. an entity-specific mieasurement, and requnres
axpanded dlsclosures about fair value'measuréments, in accordance with FASB ASC 820,

the: Organlzauon may use valualion techniques consistent with miarket, income :and..cost
appnoachas 16 measure fair value. As a basis for cons:denng market partlclpant,
assumpt:ons i f4if” valueé “measurements, FASB ASC' 820 establishes. a fair: value
hlerarthy whuph fmontnzes the inpuits used'in measufing fair values. The hlerarchy grves
ihe h!ghes! priofity lo ‘Level 1 measurements and the lowest pnonty fo Level .3
maasurements The three Ievels of the fair-value hierarchy undei FASB ASC 820 ‘are’
descnbed -as follows: .

Level 4 - Irputs to the 'valuation methodoiogy are quoted prices avallab!e i
act:ve marketsfor identical investmients as 6f the reponting date.

Level2 - Inpiits to the :valuation methodotogy are other than quoted market

,pnces In. active markets, which are either directly or mdnrectly otiservable. a

of the reportlng daté,.and fair valile cén be determined through the .use of
. models. or- other valuation mathodolog:es

Level 3 -Inputs to the valuation melhodology are, unobservable_inpuls in
Situations where thers is little or no market activily for the asset of liability.
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptlons relaled 1o the:
pricing of the :asset or liability lncludsng assumptions regarding risk.

At Fepruary 28, 2021 and- February 29, 2020, the Organlzation's Investments were-
classiﬁed as. Level 1 and were based on fair value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
i FOR THE Y-EARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020

Eaiﬁ‘value"t\{ieeshrerﬁents usle' i Significant Observable Inputs {Leve) 1),

2021 202' 0

Beglnning balance - mutual funds . § 109078 § 404 522
Totat gains'~ mutual-funds 17918 _____ 7:556
Ending:balence « mutual funds. . 8. 126896 & 105078

The, carrylng amount of :cash, curént ‘assets, other assets and current Ilabllmes
approxlmates fair value because-of the short maturily of those instruments.

The Orgamzetion also has $1 000 mvested in a Pennershlp, The Lakes Region
Partnership fer Public Healtr, at Febfuary 28, 2021.and February 29, 2020.

uFlSCAL ‘AGENT:

‘Community Action: Program Belknap-Memmack Counlles 1nc. acts as the fiscal ageiit
for- the, following commiinity organizations; Franklin Cammunity Services Building

'(Franklm) the ‘Common :Pantry (Lacénla), the Caring Fung: (Meredith), the NH; Food
Pantry Coalitiori, the NH Rotary Food Challenge -and FGP/SCP Asspclatlon Reglon 1,

Thé Agéncy provides the managément and ‘oversight of the favenues recewed
(donations) end the expenses {utilities,, food and, emergency services).

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the: Organization recéivéd loan preceeds in. the amount of $1, 935 300°
.under the Paycheck Profectlon Program ("PPP‘) The PPP, is esiablished as parl of the
.Cominavirus Aid, 'Relief and Et;onorniq Secunty Act (" CARES Act?)..

If the Orgamzahon dées nol maeél the loan criteria, the unforgiven pomon of the PPP
[9an 15 payable over five years at an interest raté of 1%, with a deferral of paymenis. for
the, first ten manths.

OTHER MATTERS |

The Impact of thg novel coronavirus. (COVID-19) and measures. to pravent is. spread
are. affecllng the, Organizat:ons business. The significance of the |mpacl of these
disruplions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organlzatuons finangial
.and operational resulls, will be dictated by the length of lime {hat -such disruptions:
continue :and, .jn.tumn, will depend on the currently-unknowable duration-of thé. COViD-19
:pandemic and the impact of govemmental regulations that right bé ‘imposed In
response:to the, pandemlc
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NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY.:29..2020

_——-—.—.—L—

TRANSFER 0 PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

'Durtng the" year “énded February 28, 2021, Community Aclion Program of Belknap-
Merrimagck Counttes Inc,. acquired ‘a pannership interest in -a low- Income héusing,
llmited ﬂartnershtp, Sandy Lédge.

“The, followm’g Jds a summary -of the assels :and liabilifies of the. partnership at the date of
-8cquisition. -

‘Date of Franstér 03/01/2020.

Cash $ 3,783
Cagh reserves 58,239
Accodrits receivable . : 2,496
Prepaid éxpenses 10,827
Property, net 980,089
- Other assets . 8,132

Total assets 31063576
‘Note payable $ 33631
Ofher liabllities 24,019
Total liabilities 360,330
Partners” capital 703,246
Tolal Vablitles and Pariners'
-Capital consolidated -3_1063.516
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events: sre evenls or transaclions that occur after the: consolidated
staternent of ﬂnancual ‘position date, but before the consolidated finaricial statements are
.8vailable to be issued. Recognlzed subsequent events are evenlts or.fransactions' that
provide additional -evidence ab0ut conditiors that existed at the consoiidatad statement
of ﬁnancnal position date, mcludmg the estimates inherent in the process -of preparing
consohdated financial statements Non-recognized subsequent. evernits dre.events that
‘pro\nde evidence about conditions that did not exist at the consoltdated statament of
finantial - posmon date, bul arose afer lhat date. Management has- evaluated
subsequent events through February 14, 2022, the date the consoligatad financial
statements were avattable to be issued.
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NOTES TO'C CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FoR THE YEARS.| ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2021 AND FEBRUARY" 29 2020

‘On. September 14,2021, the, Organlzelson received.-partia} forgivéness:inlhe amount of .
$1,615,427.-The rer‘nelnmg :$312,873 has been converted fo-a loan, due in 44 monthly
payments of princlpal and interest at a rate of 1%. The loan will maturé'in Apnl 2025
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'SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(Sée independent Auditors' Report)



NOTE 1

NOTE.2,

NOTE:4

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2021

‘BASIS. OF PRESENTATION

The- accompanymg -$chedule. of éxpendiiures of Federal Awards (the Schedule}
‘mcludes the ‘federal award- ‘activity .of - Community -Action Program Belknap~
Merrimack Countiés, |ac. undef programs. of Ihe Tederal government forthe year -
-€ndéd Febriary 58, 2021, The information in this ‘Schedule is ‘presented. in

accordance with the reerements of Title 2'U.S, Code of-Fedgral Regulatitns

Part 200, Uniiforri -Administrative Requireménts, Caost Pnncip!as -and Audit

Reqwraments for Federa! Awards {Unifarm Guidance). Becayse. the, Schadule
presents only-a seleéted portidn of the operations. of Communlty Achon Program
Belknap-Memmack Counties. Inc., it is not intended to and does not-present the:
f nanaal DOSH!OI'I changes in ret assets or cash flows:of the Organizallon

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures repoited on ‘the: Schedulé are réported on the acrual basis of
accounting, ‘Such expenditures .are recognized following the cost pnnclples
contained in the- Untform Guidance, wherein cerain types of-expenditures’ are’ not
allowable. or -are limitgd as (o réimbursément, Negative amourits- shgwn on the

'Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course, of

business tor amounlsweported -as expendiiures in prior years.

INDIRECT COST. RATE

"Con'imunily Atction Program Belknap- Mernmack Counties, Inc. has elecied notto

use the ten percent de rijrimis indirect cost.rate allowed under the Un1form
Guidance:

FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

'Nonmonelary ass:stance i$ reported 'in the Schedule at the fair value 6f the

commodutjes feceivad and disbursed.
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INDEPENOENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
‘REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND ‘OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUD!T OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Gommunity.Action Program Bétknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concdrd; New Hampshiré

We have. aud}led in. accordance with the auditing standards generaily accepted in the: United
Stétes of. Amlenca and the standands -applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing ‘Standards issuéd by the - Comptroller General of the United States, the ‘firancial
staternents of Community Action Program Belknap-Meniimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organlzatfon) whiich: -comprise the statement of financial position as of Febmary 28,.2021, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses,:and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial 'statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated February 14, 2022.

«Initémal Control Over.Financial Reporting
In planning :@nd. performing our audlt of the financial statéments, we considered'- Cqmmunity
Actlon Program Belknap-Memmac.k Countles, Inc.’s intémal controt over fihancial- reportmg
(internal contml) to-détérmine; the audil prccedures that are appropriate ini the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the fi nancial statemenis, buf not for the purpase
of expressing -an opinlon on the, effectiveness of - :Community Action Program Belknap-.
Mermmimack Counties, inc.’s intemal control. Accordingly, we do_not express.an opinion on the
effectiveness. of :Community Action Prograim Belknap—Memmack Counties, Inc.'s intemal
control.

A deficiency. in intémal control exists. when the design or operation of a control does not allow-
managemén! or eiployees, in the normal course of performing their assugned funchons to
prevent, or detect-and corract, miisstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

* deficlency,of a combination of defi¢iencies, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable.

possibility that a matenal misstatement of the entity's finarcial staternenits will not bié preventéd,
or detected and Cotracied on a timely basis: A significanL. deficiency is' a deﬁcnency, or'a
combfnattcn of deficiencles; in intemal control thal is less severé than a material weakness, yet
[mponant encugh to merit attention by those charged with govemance
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Our :consideration-of .intamal ¢dritrol was: for the limited -purpose desciibed in. the first
paragraph.of this .settion.and ‘was. not designed lo identily .all deficiencies in ‘internal control
‘that. might ‘be- maerial weaknesses or significant deficiencies and Ahérefore, maienial
“weakiiesses or-significant deficiencies-may exist that have hot beefi identified.. We did:identify
@ deliciency in internal :control,. described. in the accompanying';schedule of firidings. dnd
:quéstioned.costs asitem 2021:001 that we consider to bé & malerial weakness: '

Compliancé and Other Mattérs-

‘As part. of -obtaining reasonable assurance about ‘whether Community Action Program
Balknap-Merimack -Countles, Inc.'s financial stalements ‘are: freg from malerial ‘njissiaiément,
‘we'peérfofmed tests-of Its ‘compliadice with centairr provisions of laws, regulatighs.. contracts,
.and ;grant agreemerits, nongompliance wilh which could have a direct. and material efféct on
‘the :dgténnihaﬁoq-'o'f’ financial. statement amounts. However, ~providing an. opinion ‘on
-compliance withthosé provisiol

provisions:was not.2n objective of our audit; and aceondingly, we do not
express such: an-opinlon: Thg résults of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance-or
+ other-iatters:that are'required to be reported undet Goverament Auditing Stangards.

Puirpbss of this:Repdrt o - o B
‘The: purpase -q'f-._'m,i; tepartis olely: to describe the scope of-our testing of 'intemaljédrjt'rqj-énq.
compliance-and the.resulls of 1hat tésting, and not to provide an. opinion on the effectiveness. of

the: Orgdnization's. interhal, controt or ori compliance.- This report is an integral part of ‘an.aydit

" perfoimed In ‘Bccordance with Government Auditing  Standards in -Considering the-

Organization’s intemal coiitrol. and tompliance. Accordingly. this commurication IS not striable-
.for. any other purpose: " ;

‘Concord, New:Hampshire
Febriiary 14,2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
‘MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER.COMPLIANCE
Egumso BY THE UNIFORM | GUIDANCE

To the Board af. Directors,
Commumty Actlon Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New:Hampshire

Report on Comgﬂance for Each. Ma]or Federal Progiam

Wae.have audlted Commumty Actiory Program Befknap—Memmack Countles Incis comphance
wﬂh the types of complianice requiremerits desciibed in the. OMB Comphance Supplemont that
could -have a-direct and material effect on each of - Commumty Action- Program Belknap-
Merrimack. Counties: Int.'s ma;or federal programs for the year ended Febryaiy 28, 2021,

Commumty Action Program ‘Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s riajor federal programs are
identified. in the summary-of auditors' results section of the accompanying sthedulg of findings
. -and questioned costs.

anagement S. Responsibmty
Management 15 fesponsible for compliance with fedéral stalutes fegulations, and the :témms
and conditions-of 1ts federd! awards appticable o Iis federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on compliance for each. of Community Action
Pragram Belknap-Mémimack'Coynties, Inc.’s major federal programs. based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred 1o above. We. conducted our sudit of compliance in
acoordanoe with auditing standards generally accepted in- the: United States of Amerlca the,
standards apphcablo to. financial .audils contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptrolter General of the United States; and the; audil requirements of Title 2 U.S.

Code: of. Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, -Cost Pnnc!p!es

and-Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
.Uniform Guidance require that we:plan and perform the -audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance
about: whether noncompliance with.the types of compliance requirements: referred to above
lhat; ¢ould have a direct and material effect on a major fedéral program occurred. An audit
Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Be!knap—
Meriimack Counties, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and pen‘ormlng stich other
procedures as we. considerad -necessary in the circumstancas.

We beliéve: that our audlt provldes 3. reasonable basis for our-opinion on compllanoe for-each
major federal ‘program. Howevér, our -audit does not provide a legal determination of
Comimunity Actlon Program Belkhdp-Merimack Counties; Inc.'s compliance.

29



Oeron on Each Major Federal Progiam.

In:our opinion, Communlty Action F?rogram Belknap-Merritack Courities, Ing:. compiied ih all
matenal respects wrth.the types of complignce requirements.referred {o above: that could’ ‘have
adlrect ‘and: ‘matarlal effeét on @ach.of its major ledéral progtams for the-year ended ,F,e,bryary
‘;2& '2021.

-&pon oh Intérnal Control Over: Complidnce

Management Of'Communlty Actfon Program. Betknap-Merimack Courities, .In¢: is. responsible-
for establlshlng -and* maintalning ‘effective, intemnat control over compliance with the: lypes. of
-.oomphance requrrerhents referred to -above. In plannrng and performing our sudit ‘of
complrance. we oonsrdered Commumty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countres tné.'s
lntemal control over complrence ‘with the types of requiremeats that could have.a. dlrect and
: matenal effect. on.gach major federal program to déterrine the ‘auditing procedures thet ‘are
.appropriate, jin the ciréumstances: for the purpose of expressing an opinion qn oomphance for
each-major federat. piggram. and to test and rféport on internal coritro! over. cor‘nplrance in
.acoordance with-the: Unlform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnlon on
.lhe effectrveness of. rnternal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not. express an
oplmon on ‘the: effectrveness sof Communily Action Program ‘Belknap-Merrimack ‘Courities,
Ing.. smlemel conitrol-ovér compliance.

A def‘ c:ency in_ intefnal. control Gver compliance exists- when the, design or operarron of 8.

control .over complrance does.not -dllow management or employees; in the normal course. ‘of

performmg thelr : assrgned functions, to prevent, or detecl and cofrect, noncomphance.wrtha

type of oompl:ance requirement of a federal program-on a hmely basis. A. material- -wiakiass in

inteimal controf over’ coranrance is 2 dafi crency or ¢ambination "of defi iciencies, ih intemal

control: - over r;omplrence such. that theré is a reasonable posslbrlrty tHat .materal
nonoomphence with a type of :compliance requirement of a federal program wul not "be-
_ prevented of detecled and ‘comecled, ‘on a timely basisi. A srgmﬁcant deﬁcrency in. rntemal

't:ontrbl over compllance is 8 deﬁciency, or a oornbmatron ol defi dehcies. in intemal contnot

over complrance with a type' of compliance requirement of & federal. program lhatrs less. severe

than a, matenal weakness in Apteenal conlrol over compliance, yet rmportant enough to merit

atteation by thoge charged with.gavemance.

Our oonsrderatron of intemal control ovar compliance: was for the: limited purposé descdbed in
the fifst paragfap_b ‘of this sechon and was nol designed to identify all deficienciés in: mlemal
control ‘over compliance; that rmight: be.malenial weaknesses ‘or significani deﬁcrencres We did
not Idenufy enyrdeﬁcrendes in mtemai ¢ontrol ovar compliance that we - conslder to be matetal -
. weaknesses However matefial weaknesses may exist that have not.been. ldentrf‘ed

‘The purposé of- thisegort on intémal contro over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
- .our tesiing: of: Intérnal contfol over comipliance and the results of that testing: based on the
requirements of the-Uniform Guidance. Acoordrngly this report .is: gt suitable for any -other

purpose

MW:W

Concorg, New Hampshire
February 14; 2022




1.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR.THE 2 YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021

sUMMﬁZRY Gf—'-AUI:')’ITORS'.‘ RE‘suus

The-auditors' "reépornt expresses.an unmodiﬁed opinion on whether lhe fi nénmal steternenls

-of Community -Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countres inc: were prepared m

accirdarnice with generally accepted accouriting ‘principlés.

'One .maténal weakness. relating to the .audit of the financial statements is reported in the

- Indepéndait. -Auditors' :Report on Internal :Control .Over Financial Reporrmg anhd .00 .

Comphance and olher ‘Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Srarements Performed in
Accordance with Govemmant Audmng ‘Standards.

No. lnstences of nonoompliance malerial lothe financial statemerils .of Communﬂy Actidn
Prograrn BeII{nap Mernmack Countiés, Inc:, which would be tequired to 'be.reported in:
accondance with Govemmenz Auditing Srandards were disclosed during-the dudit.

. No. slgnlr cant deficienciés in..intemal control over major federal award pregrams dre
‘reported in the Independent Auditors* Report on Compliance for Each-Major Program and'

On, Internal Conliol Qver Comphence Rsquired by the- U.m!orm Guldance. No.ohatérial
weaknesses ‘dre reboned

The auditors' report on- complignce for the major federal award programs for Commumty
Attion. Program Belknap—Memmack Counlies, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on. all o
major programs

There weré no audlt f r‘tdmgs that are required té be reported in accordance. wlth ‘2 CFR
saction.200.516(a),

. The programs tested as.major pmgrams intlude:

u.s. Department-of Health.and Humzn Services, Low Incomé Home:- ‘Energy: Asslstance
"Piogram.93.568, Medica! Assistance Progiam 83.778, National Family Caregiver
Supgort, Tltle 111, Part £ 93.052, U.S. Department of Agricullure, Food Dlstiibution
Cluster; 10.565, 10 568, 10,569, U.S. Department of the Treasury Coronavlrus Relief
Fund, 21.018.

The lhrésholéi-fondis!lﬁguiShlr'\g'Type'A and B programs was $750,000:

Commumty Action Program Belknap-Mertimack Counties, inc. was determined. to not be a
low=fisk auditee. .

kY|



FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AuOIT
: MATERIAL WEAKNESS
2025001

Condition: The fir nangial statements pfesented to the -auditor at the. beglnnlng of fleldwork
Included agcaunis that ‘had-notbean reconciled accurately orin a llmely mannet. ’

Cnteﬁa ‘The. Orgamzallons internal-control procedures should be struclured 50 that accounts
.are recoricited and rev:ewed cha g:mely basis.

Causé; Sig_niﬁCan; turriover In the fiscal dep'a‘rt_menl of the-organtzation.

Effect: Significant--audit .and Iaté client entfies were recorded to ensure. accurate account
balances:-

Recommandalion The -auditors réecommend that the fi nanclal close process. in€ludes a: review
. @hd teconcilialion of ail sngnlﬂcanl accounts.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Phone {603) 225-3295 2 lndus?ncl P@rk Drive

(800) 856-5525 P 0. B0ox 10146
FOX(élO?) 228-]8_98 P BELKNAP- MERR!MACK COUNT|§$ INC. OnC'OFd - NH
WBbWWWl?m-CppOfg SNEOWEULING COUNUNITING SIHCE 108d : 03302 |016

Febriiary 14,2022
Finding2021-001;
Plan Go:ng forward ali reconciliations will be completed in a timély.manner.
This wilk: ensureé.any errors and omissions will be caught and corrected timely:

All-accounts. wlll be revnewed and reconciléd before fieldwork beging. This
wul‘ éliminate the:need for mgmﬁcant audit and late client entriés,

. .Apht‘:lg’ ated Completion Dite: 321140'022

Céh'mg't:.il i'ﬂ.Lés'merises; CFQ
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‘SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FlNDlNGS
?6R~THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021

‘MATERIAL:WEAKNESS.
'2020-001

“Gondition: Thefinancial siaiéments presenied to ‘the auditor at the begmnlng of fieldwork
understatod\revenue and expenses by @ material.amount. Thié. was pnmanly ‘the. result-of
tmpmper cut oft due to revenue ang expenses related to the fiscal year under audnt being-
fecorded 16 the; subsaquent penod

‘Recommendstions: The. .acfdnors récommend that-the Orgamzatlcn implement procedures s0
lhat balance sheet accounts are reconcded and rewewed by. managemént on g, monthw'basns

rev:aw of all S|gnifcant palance sheet and-profit and Iéss accounts.

'Curre'nt-.Status; Open - S.'ee. 2021-001.,



EHective May 24, 2022

! BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. .

MM EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1985

'. . COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dennis Marino, Ptesidénr , Tracy Vergason, Director
Chiis Pyles, Vice Prasident Theresa M. Cromwell, Director

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer IKathy Goode, D.rref_:tor .

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Clerk Sara A. Lewko, Diractor

'Heather Brown, Director David Siff. Esq.. Director

Ashley Reed, Diractor David Croft, Dirsctor

—

Current fiscal \.fear {3/1/22 = $/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22,9/8/22, 11/10/22, 1/12/23.

kD:CAPBM 8O0 § 2021



_ COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC..

EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1865

LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

09/21/2022-09/30/2023

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

' % Paid Amount Pdld
Name Job Title Salary from this from this -
Contract Contract
Jeannc; Agri Chief Executive Officer $145916.10 0% $0.00
Jill Lesmeriscs Chicf Fiscal Officer $103,000.04 0% $0.00
TBD Water Assistance Program T8D
Manager
T8D Water Assistance Coordinator TBD




Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills: written, verhal and presentarionnl. Adcpt
in coaching aihd méntoring employecs aid collcagues as cvidenced by my selectioo. by the National Office of Head Stért to
serve as'a metor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they meet
outcomes approved by the board througli strotegic plmmmg creuting gusl-oricnted systems pid conformance with all
locs!, state and fedcral guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH )
Execunve Direcior ; 2018-present’

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH

Assures the, orgamzanon hes long-range sirategy which makes consistent and timely progress :owards mecluig
the Agencies ovérall. mission

Responsible for the general supervision of all grent awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulalory, and /or
program and finencial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting pnnc:lplcs arc applied, and
that a1l program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

Provide leadership in developing programs, orgenizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies suthorized by the Board

.Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizalions

and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs,
See that thé Board Director is:kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the' orgenization and al)

.important Federal, State or local éequirements.imp'acting on the Agency and/or its programs,

Education' and Niitrition Operations Diréctor : ' 2016 - 2018

n

Coordinate; manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Womcn infant and.Children, and
Literacy Programs, as weh-as development.of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services
Formiulate; improve and impiement departmental and orgenizational policies and procedyres to

. maximize:output. Ménitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures -

Assist in the reciiitment gnd placement of required staff, gstablishmeat of, orgamzauonalstrucmre

'dclcganon of tasks and accountabilities :

Supervise staff, mcludmg establishment of work schedules and monitoring end cvnlualmg perf‘ormancc in.
partnership with Executive Director

Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational

plans

Director of Child Development Prograins 2001-2016 ]

'Hire, costh and evaluate the performance of Program Mansgers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start suppont staft

Provide conching, and learning opportumues for all employces focused on promotmg supporting and

improving early development of children from the prenstal stage to five years of age using rcsrarch

‘based practices

Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program ‘Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and

* Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and sirengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

Develop internal siructures, systems, and policies supportirig majorcontcrit arcas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social scmccs parent involvement, nuirition, disabilities ,and

transportation



in

"
»

Collaborate with managers end internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component.
budgets; ldcnnﬁcauon and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements’

Work.in parmnership with iniernal depanments to support project goals and meet customcrexpccmuons
Establish and maintain rclntlonshlps and collaborations with public school districts, systérns of higher
education, and other community agencies end partners .
Ensure adequate systems‘in place 10 maintain the highestquality of services to children arid families ia.
compliance with Head Start Pesformance Standards

‘Ensure consistency in scrvice delivery across the program with attention to inclusive preciices and

1nt:grnhou Ofcomponenl areas; encourage conlinuous improvement of systems.

Puality Assurance Direcior/Co-Direcior for Child Development Programs ' 1999-2001

Establishedand managed a robust monitoring, snalysis snd evaluation system with wcll defined rcsult.s
milgstones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices

‘Monitored for quality and complieiice at Grantee and Delegete. level |

Worked closely with program Director o review, track end assess moriitoring compluancc throughout
program operations

Developed and impiements s written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjuncnon with
.Governing Board, Policy Council

Intérpreted and eveluated a variefy of informetion to present it in meaningful oral or wrinten form for

varied sudiences and providc reliablc analysis leading to sound decision-meking

Aréa Manager/Educanon Manager : . 1997 -1999

-

_ Chitd Care Center Director/Site Manager ' 1995-1997.

Supervision of variois Child Care sites mcludmg direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
Coordinatc personal ‘and professional dcvclopmem and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards cducational requirements s supporied by the Performance Standards

Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance
Improvement Plans when warranied.

Supervised, mentored, coach and.administered work pluns und direclives1o staff
Communicated arens-of performance improvement to stalf and promote training that refiected individual

_ needs of staff members and ihe team'as 8 whole

Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies and grant requ:remenls

New Ha_mpshire Tecbpicgl College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997

-

Taiight Child Growth & Development aind assisted in curriculum dcvclopmem for Early Childhood

Education Program -
Planned and organized instruction to meximize documénted student learning

Employed appropriate-tcaching end learning strategies to communicate subject maiter o studénts
Modificd, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Sooth'ern New. Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration ' : June 2017

Notre Dame Coliege, Manchestcr, NH ,
. Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education ) 1981

-



Jill Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-niotivated Accounting Professional bringing farth over 30 years of
valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity 1o use my non-profit.
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management, -
bank recqnciliatigns,: accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts bayable, payroll, abdit
preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 4038 pénsic;n compliance and ‘audit
preparation, employee: benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21 - Present ]

Chief Fiscal Officer, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.

CAPBM is a hot-for-prafit with 25 miillion in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has'aver 300
employees and holds 8 million in-assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6.fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work pa‘pé‘rs for annual
-audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 !'go,u_s'ing
projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review.”
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17 - 12/2i _
Senior Accountant, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services'is 3 not-for-profit with 49 million in revenue with 30 legal
entities. The Agency has over-400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers.for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts-payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for

_accounts payable:and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various
governmental agencies, prepare ACA fq’rrris, prepare paperwork for 4038 annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 4038 Commitiee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and
running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02 - 10/17 ;
Staff Accountant, Community Action Program Belhnag-Merrimac}t Countles, Inc.

. At the time of my employment, Commuinity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties was a not-for-
profit with 20 million in revenue. The-Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prebared.and entered
journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts
payable/receivabile positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members i

1/00 - 902 ' :
Account Sugervisou: {for2 Comg_a'niesll Whole Life, Inc.

Whp!e,Life, Inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports,.yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and
cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid

9/98 - 1/00 :
‘Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies}, C5N Financial, Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers

5/93-9/98-
Assistant Controller, Biosystems, Inc. )

Collected past due accounts réceivable-both foreign and qom'esti.c, provided s}witchboard relief,
handled;petty cash funds, audited salesrnen expenses, cut-accounts payable ctiecks, prepared
journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88 -'5/93 :
Business Officer, The Caring Community of Connecticut, Inc.

2 A 8
The Caring Commuriity of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue,

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspandence,

coded cash recéipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000 ?
Bachelor Degree in Accounting; Eastern Connecticut State University
Graduated cum laude

1992-1996
Associate Degree in Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named to Dean’s list, graduated with high honors

1981-1985

Merrimack Valley High School .
Member of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17 - Present

Diréctor on The Loudor Communications Councit

Countil is'responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon,
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the,Council for'2
years.



